
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
Paul Casey 

City Administrator 
 Bendy White 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Randy Rowse 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Ariel Pierre Calonne 
City Attorney 

Gregg Hart 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Jason Dominguez 
Frank Hotchkiss 
Cathy Murillo 
 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 

 
MAY 10, 2016 

AGENDA 
 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need auxiliary aids or services or staff assistance to attend or participate 
in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s Office at 564-5305.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will usually enable the City to make reasonable arrangements. Specialized services, such as sign language 
interpretation or documents in Braille, may require additional lead time to arrange. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

5/10/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 12:00 p.m. - Special Finance Committee Meeting, David Gebhard Public 
Meeting Room, 630 Garden Street 

 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting 
 4:00 p.m. - Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North 

Milpas Street (Estimated Time) 
 
 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING S 

SPECIAL FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:00 P.M. IN THE DAVID GEBHARD 
PUBLIC MEETING ROOM, 630 GARDEN STREET (120.03)  

1. Subject:  Finance Committee Review Of The Fiscal Year 2017 
Recommended Budget 

Recommendation: That Finance Committee hear a report from staff regarding 
proposed fee changes by General Fund departments which would take effect on 
July 1, 2016. 

 
2. Subject:  General Fund And Streets Unfunded Infrastructure Needs 

Recommendation:  That the Finance Committee hear a presentation on 
unfunded infrastructure needs. 



 

5/10/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Subject:  Records Destruction For Public Works Department (160.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Relating to the Destruction of Records 
Held by the Public Works Department in the Engineering, Facilities and Energy 
Management, Fleet Management, Transportation, and Water Resources 
Divisions. 
  

2. Subject:  Resolution to Receive And Implement Grant Funding Related to 
California Redemption Value Containers (630.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Finance Director, or His 
or Her Designee, to Submit and Execute All Documents Necessary to Secure 
Funds from the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery Related to the 
Collection and Diversion of California Redemption Value Containers. 
  

3. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For Rayne Santa Barbara, Inc., Brine 
Discharge Agreement (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a Ten-Year Agreement with 
Two Consecutive Five-Year Options with Rayne Santa Barbara, Inc., for Salt 
Brine Conveyance at the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant, Effective June 
9, 2016. 



 

5/10/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

4. Subject:  Short-Term Residential Rental Subpoenas (640.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive certified copies of subpoenaed records 
related to unlawful vacation rentals that are subject to the City's Ordinance 
prohibiting their operation. 

5. Subject:  Contract For Water Main Design Services (540.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
City Professional Services Agreement with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc., in 
an amount not to exceed $600,000 for On-Call Water Main Design Services. 

6. Subject:  Acceptance Of Grant Revenues, Authorization Of Increase, And 
Appropriation Of Funds For The De La Vina Street Bridge Replacement 
Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept Federal Highway Administration Highway Bridge Program grant 

funding in the total amount of $885,300 for the De La Vina Street Bridge 
Replacement Project; 

B. Authorize the increase of estimated revenues and appropriations in the 
Fiscal Year 2016 Streets Capital Fund by $885,300 for the De La Vina 
Street Bridge Replacement Project; and  

C. Authorize a transfer of $45,000 from existing Streets Capital Fund 
appropriations to cover a portion of the City's share of Local Funds 
associated with the design phase of the De La Vina Street Bridge 
Replacement Project. 

 
7. Subject:  2016-17 Annual Action Plan Related to Housing and Community 

Development Programs (610.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A.  Adopt the 2016-17 Annual Action Plan for submittal to the U.S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD); and 
B. Authorize the City Administrator to sign all necessary documents to submit 

the City's 2016-2017 Annual Action Plan to HUD. 
 

8. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance Pertaining To 251 S. Hope (640.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Chapter 28.12 (Zone Map) of 
Title 28 of the Municipal Code Pertaining to Zoning of Assessor's Parcel Number 
051-240-008. 
  



 

5/10/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

NOTICES 

9. The City Clerk has on Thursday, May 5, 2016, posted this agenda in the Office of 
the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City 
Hall, and on the Internet. 

10. Receipt of communication advising of a vacancy created on the Rental Housing 
Mediation Board with the resignation of Scott Wexler.  This vacancy will be part 
of the next recruitment. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 

11. Subject:  9-1-1 Emergency Dispatch And Cell Phone Call Routing (520.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive a presentation and consider support of 
Assembly Bill 1564 (Williams), 9-1-1 Emergency Response - Wireless Routing 
Optimization. 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING RULES APPLY TO THIS AGENDA ITEM 

12. Subject:  Appeal Of Small Cell Wireless Communications Facility Proposed 
In The Public Right-Of-Way Of The 300 Block Of Grove Lane  (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Uphold the appeal of Jan and Maria Kaestner of the Architectural Board of 

Review's decision to grant Final Approval, and approve a revised design 
for the small cell wireless communications facility proposed by Verizon 
Wireless within the 300 block of Grove Lane; and 

B. Direct Staff to return to Council with decision and findings reflecting the 
outcome of the appeal. 



 

5/10/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

PUBLIC HEARINGS (CONT’D) 

QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING RULES APPLY TO THIS AGENDA ITEM 
 
13. Subject:  Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North 

Milpas Street  (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Deny the appeals of Jarrett Gorin and Pete Dal Bello and uphold the 

Planning Commission's approval of a Storefront Collective Dispensary 
Permit; and  

B. Direct staff to return to Council with Decision and Findings reflecting the 
outcome of the appeal. 

  (Estimated Time:  4:00 p.m.) 
 
 
COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



File Code 120.03 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
 
DATE: May 10, 2016 Gregg Hart, Chair 
TIME: 12:00 P.M.  Bendy White  
PLACE: David Gebhard Public Meeting Room Jason Dominguez 
 630 Garden Street  

 
Paul Casey  Robert Samario 
City Administrator Finance Director 

         
 

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED: 
 
 

1. Subject:  Finance Committee Review Of The Fiscal Year 2017 Recommended 
Budget 
 
Recommendation: That the Finance Committee hear a report from staff regarding 
proposed fee changes by General Fund departments which would take effect on 
July 1, 2016.   
 
 

2. Subject:  General Fund And Streets Unfunded Infrastructure Needs  
 
Recommendation: That the Finance Committee hear a presentation on unfunded 
infrastructure needs. 



Agenda Item No.  1 
 

File Code No.  120.03 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2016 
 
TO: Finance Committee 
 
FROM: Administration Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Finance Committee Review Of The Fiscal Year 2017 Recommended 

Budget 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Finance Committee hear a report from staff regarding proposed fee changes by 
General Fund departments which would take effect on July 1, 2016.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On April 26, 2016 the Finance Committee approved a schedule for their review of certain 
elements of the Fiscal Year 2017 Recommended Budget. The Finance Committee review 
schedule is included as an attachment to this report.  
 
At this meeting, staff will be presenting proposed changes to fees for services charged by 
General Fund departments.  
 
ATTACHMENT: Finance Committee Review Schedule 
 
PREPARED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

Finance Committee Review Schedule 
Mid-Cycle Budget for Fiscal Year 2017 

 
Please Note: Meeting dates and times are subject to change on short notice 

Meeting Date and Time Department 
 
Tuesday, April 26, 2016 
12:00 p.m. – 1:45 p.m. 
 

 
 Proposed Finance Committee Budget Review 

Schedule 
 

 Additional Topics for Review Identified by the 
Committee 

 
 March 31st Quarterly Investment Report (Non-Budget 

Item) 
 

 Streets Fund Budget Considerations (Non-Budget 
Item) 
 

 
Tuesday, May 3, 2016 
12:30 p.m. – 1:45 p.m. 

 
 General Fund non-departmental revenues  and 

assumptions  
 

 General Fund Multi-Year Forecast  
 

 
Tuesday, May 10, 2016 
12:00 p.m. – 1:45 p.m. 
 

 
 General Fund departmental proposed fee changes 

 
 General Fund and Streets Unfunded Infrastructure 

Needs (Non-Budget Item) 
 

 
Tuesday, May 17, 2016 
12:30 p.m. – 1:45 p.m. 
 

 
 Enterprise Fund proposed fee changes (excluding 

utility rates) 
 

 Funding Requests from Community Organizations 
 

 Pension Information 

 
Tuesday, May 24, 2016 
12:30 p.m. – 1:45 p.m. 
 

 
 Follow up on items requested by Finance 

Committee, if any 
 
 Staff recommended adjustments to recommended 

budget, if any 
 

 Finance Committee Decisions for Recommendation 
to Council 

 
 FY 2016 Third Quarter Review (Non-Budget Item) 

Note: No Finance Committee meeting on May 31, 2016. 



Agenda Item No.  2 
 

File Code No.  120.03 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2016 
 
TO: Finance Committee 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: General Fund And Streets Unfunded Infrastructure Needs 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That the Finance Committee hear a presentation on unfunded infrastructure needs. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
At the Council meeting on February 2, 2016, Council directed staff to work with the 
Finance Committee to develop options for increasing the amount of funding available for 
streets, sidewalks, storm drains, street lights, traffic signals, and other related 
infrastructure (Streets Infrastructure).   
 
On March 1, 2016, the Finance Committee heard staff presentations related to the 
Streets Fund revenue projections and related expenditures. In Fiscal Year 2016, Utility 
Users Tax and Gas Tax revenues are expected to be below budget by approximately 
$308,159. In Fiscal Year 2017, those same revenues are estimated to be approximately 
$399,427 less than originally proposed. Measure A revenue has seen modest growth. 
 
On March 15, 2016, the Finance Committee heard a staff presentation related to the LA 
Consulting Report, dated August 2015. The report highlighted current Street Section 
activities and the potential to achieve monetary savings through the implementation of 
improved field-level maintenance planning activities. 
 
On April 12, 2016, the Finance Committee heard a staff presentation related to the 
City’s Capital Improvement Program’s Streets Funds-related projects.  There are 
currently over 30 Capital projects in various stages of completion. The vast majority are 
funded primarily, and in some cases entirely, through grants. The amount of capital 
funds available is far short of the amount of funding necessary to maintain our street 
infrastructure, and grants are not available for basic maintenance needs, including 
pavement and sidewalk maintenance. This presents a difficult choice between 



Finance Committee Agenda Report 
General Fund And Streets Unfunded Infrastructure Needs 
May 10, 2016 
Page 2  

 

leveraging the limited City funds for grants and allocating these funds for maintenance 
without leveraging grant funds. 
 
On April 26, 2016, the Finance Committee heard a staff presentation related to the 
Streets Funds Operating Program. The Public Works Department’s Transportation 
Division is currently reducing operating expenses through increasing efficiencies 
associated with on-going maintenance work.  These operating expense savings will 
directly translate to future capital fund increases, although these savings will not be 
sufficient to bridge the gap between current funding levels and maintenance needs.  
 
At this meeting, staff will make a presentation highlighting Citywide unfunded needs for 
its buildings, roadways, parks, and related systems.  
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The City’s infrastructure relies heavily on funds from special purpose or restricted funds. 
Funds for this infrastructure are flat or declining, while construction costs continue to 
rise. Deferral of these projects’ construction results in continued deterioration of 
Citywide assets and ultimately accelerates the final construction costs needed for 
improvement of these assets. 
 
PREPARED BY: Chris Toth, Transportation Division Manager/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  1 
 

File Code No.  160.06 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  May 10, 2016 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Administration Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Records Destruction For Public Works Department 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Relating to the Destruction of Records Held by the Public Works 
Department in the Engineering, Facilities and Energy Management, Fleet Management, 
Transportation, and Water Resources Divisions. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City Council adopted Resolution No. 16-005 on February 9, 2016, approving the 
City of Santa Barbara Records Management Policies and Procedures Manual.  The 
Manual contains the records retention and disposition schedules for all City 
departments.  The schedules are a comprehensive listing of records created or 
maintained by the City, the length of time each record should be retained, and the legal 
retention authority.  If no legal retention authority is cited, the retention period is based 
on standard records management practice. 
 
Pursuant to the Manual, the Public Works Director submitted a request for records 
destruction to the City Clerk Services Manager to obtain written consent from the City 
Attorney.  The City Clerk Services Manager agreed that the list of records proposed for 
destruction conformed to the retention and disposition schedules.  The City Attorney 
has consented in writing to the destruction of the proposed records. 
 
The Public Works Director requests the City Council to approve the destruction of the 
Public Works Department records in the Engineering, Facilities and Energy 
Management, Fleet Management, Transportation, and Water Resources Divisions listed 
on Exhibit A of the proposed Resolution, without retaining a copy. 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Records Destruction For Public Works Department 
May 10, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
Under the City's sustainability program, one of the City's goals is to increase recycling 
efforts and divert waste from landfills.  The Citywide Records Management Program 
outlines that records approved for destruction be recycled, reducing paper waste. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Michele DeCant, Business Manager/CC/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA RELATING TO THE DESTRUCTION OF 
RECORDS HELD BY THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
IN THE ENGINEERING, FACILITIES AND ENERGY 
MANAGEMENT, FLEET MANAGEMENT, 
TRANSPORTATION, AND WATER RESOURCES 
DIVISIONS 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 16-005 on February 9, 2016, 
approving the City of Santa Barbara Records Management Policies and Procedures 
Manual; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara Records Management Policies and Procedures 
Manual contains the records retention and disposition schedules for all City 
departments.  The records retention and disposition schedules are a comprehensive 
listing of records created or maintained by the City, the length of time each record 
should be retained, and the legal retention authority.  If no legal retention authority is 
cited, the retention period is based on standard records management practice; 
 
WHEREAS, Government Code section 34090 provides that, with the approval of the 
City Council and the written consent of the City Attorney, the head of a City department 
may destroy certain city records, documents, instruments, books or papers under the 
Department Head’s charge, without making a copy, if the records are no longer needed; 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Director submitted a request for the destruction of records 
held by the Public Works Department to the City Clerk Services Manager to obtain 
written consent from the City Attorney.  A list of the records, documents, instruments, 
books or papers proposed for destruction is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and shall 
hereafter be referred to collectively as the “Records”; 
 
WHEREAS, the Records do not include any records affecting title to real property or 
liens upon real property, court records, records required to be kept by statute, records 
less than two years old, video or audio recordings that are evidence in any claim or 
pending litigation, or the minutes, ordinances or resolutions of the City Council or any 
City board or commission; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Clerk Services Manager agrees that the proposed destruction 
conforms to the City’s retention and disposition schedules; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Attorney consents to the destruction of the Records; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara finds and determines that the 
Records are no longer required and may be destroyed. 



2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA that the Public Works Director, or her designated representative, is 
authorized and directed to destroy the Records without retaining a copy. 
  



EXHIBIT A 

1 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 

 
 
 
Records Series Date(s) 
 
ENGINEERING DIVISION 
Engineering 
Capital Project files – Design and Construction 2013 
 
 
FLEET MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
Biennial Inspections of Terminals FY2010 – FY2012 
Smog Records FY2010 – FY2012 
Vehicle Records FY2010 – FY2012 
 
 
TRANSPORTATION DIVISION 
Downtown Parking  
Billing Files May 2013 – March 2014 
Downtown Parking Committee Files Prior to April 2015 
Resident Parking Program Files 
 Correspondence and Tracking Documents May 2013 – March 2014 
 Information Sheets Prior to March 2014 
Monthly Parking Program Files May 2013 – March 2014 
Other Parking Program Files May 2013 – March 2014 
Parking Supervisor Maintenance Files May 2010 – March 2011 
Parking Supervisor Operations Files May 2013 – March 2014 
Treasury and Revenue Reports May 2013 – March 2014 
Vendor History Files May 2013 – March 2014 
 
RECORDS COMMON TO MOST OFFICES 
Calendars May 2014 – March 2015 
Complaints May 2013 – March 2014 
Contracts and Agreements May 2010 – March 2011 
Credit Card Transaction Records January– September 

2014 
Equipment Records 2015 
Leases May 2010 – March 2011 
Membership in Associations, Societies, and Committees May 2010 – March 2013 
Personnel Recruitment Files May 2010 – March 2013 
Reports and Studies 
 Final Report Prior to March 2006 
 Backup Data and Documentation May 2013 – March 2014 
 Working Files May 2013 – March 2015 



2 

STREETS 
Street Maintenance Subject Files 2003 - 2005 
Streets Maintenance Project Files  1992 - 2006 
 
RECORDS COMMON TO MOST OFFICES 
Citizen Complaints 1992 – March 2006 
Correspondence 2011 - 2014 
 
WATER RESOURCES DIVISION 
Water Distribution 
Backflow Device Files  2008 
Meter Test Reports 2003 - 2009 
Water Incident Reports 2001 - 2009 
 
Laboratory 
Laboratory Equipment Maintenance Files  Prior to 2015 
 
Waste Water Collection 
Waste Water Incident Reports Prior to 2009 
 
Waste Water Treatment 
Discharge Self-Monitoring Reports 2009 
Safety Meeting Minutes 2012 
 
Water Treatment 
Safety Meeting Minutes 2012 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  2 
File Code No.  630.01 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Environmental Services Division, Finance Department  
 
SUBJECT: Resolution to Receive And Implement Grant Funding Related to 

California Redemption Value Containers  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City 
of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Finance Director, or His or Her Designee, to 
Submit and Execute All Documents Necessary to Secure Funds from the 
Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery Related to the Collection and 
Diversion of California Redemption Value Containers.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle), 
established under the Integrated Waste Management Act (Assembly Bill 939), is 
the agency charged with ensuring that every jurisdiction in the state diverts at least 
75% of its waste by the year 2020. To achieve this goal, CalRecycle provides grant 
funding to jurisdictions to facilitate the diversion of beverage containers such as 
plastic and glass bottles from landfill disposal.   
 
The source of this grant funding is Assembly Bill 2020, the California “Bottle Bill,” 
enacted in 1986. Under this program, consumers pay a California Redemption 
Value (CRV) deposit at the point of purchase. Consumers can claim this deposit by 
exchanging the beverage container at a CRV redemption location. Unclaimed 
deposits are distributed to jurisdictions in the form of grant funding to facilitate the 
capture and diversion of beverage containers. This program has proven to be 
successful, and receives widespread public support.   
 
Since 1987, more than 300 billion aluminum, glass, and plastic beverage 
containers have been recycled1, resulting in the diversion of 85% of all CRV 
beverage containers statewide.2 
                     
1 Retrieved from the World Wide Web at http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/bevcontainer/ 

http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/bevcontainer/


Council Agenda Report 
Resolution to Receive And Implement Grant Funding Related to California 
Redemption Value Containers  
May 10, 2016 
Page 2 

 

Staff proposes to use grant funds for the following purposes:  
 

• To offset a portion of the salaries of field staff who work with businesses and 
multi-unit residential properties to establish and improve onsite recycling 
programs;   

• To cover for the cost to repair and replace public recycling containers located on 
City rights-of-way pursuant to the approved Public Container Master Plan; 

• To provide recycling education to elementary school classes located throughout 
the City through Explore Ecology; and, 

• To procure supplies, including litter grabbers, bags, gloves and other equipment 
used to collect litter, including discarded beverage containers, during the City’s 
annual Cleanup Day, organized by Looking Good Santa Barbara. 
 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Based upon previous grant awards, staff anticipates that CalRecycle will award 
approximately $25,000 to the City. This anticipated funding is reflected in the 
proposed Fiscal Year 2017 Solid Waste Fund budget.  
  
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
Recycling bottles and cans saves energy, conserves natural resources and valuable 
landfill space, and provides raw materials for new products. Beverage containers 
made from virgin feedstock result in 20% greater greenhouse gas emissions than 
those manufactured from recycled feedstock.2 Increasing the capture of beverage 
containers also results substantial reductions in beverage container litter2. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Matthew R. Fore, Environmental Services Manager  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director  
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 

                                                                  
 
2 Retrieved from the World Wide Web at http://www.bottlebill.org/legislation/usa/california.htm 
 

 

http://www.bottlebill.org/legislation/usa/california.htm


1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE 
DIRECTOR, OR HIS OR HER DESIGNEE, TO SUBMIT 
AND EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
SECURE FUNDS FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF 
RESOURCES RECYCLING AND RECOVERY RELATED 
TO THE COLLECTION AND DIVERSION OF CALIFORNIA 
REDEMPTION VALUE CONTAINERS  

 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Public Resources Code sections 48000 et seq., 14581, and 
42023.1(g), the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) has 
established various payment programs to make payments to qualifying jurisdictions; 
 
WHEREAS, in furtherance of this authority CalRecycle is required to establish 
procedures governing the administration of the payment programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, CalRecycle’s procedures for administering payment programs require, 
among other things, an applicant’s governing body to declare by resolution certain 
authorizations related to the administration of the payment program. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The Finance Director, or his or her designee, is authorized to submit an 
application on behalf of the City of Santa Barbara to CalRecycle for any and all payment 
programs offered. 
 
SECTION 2.  The Finance Director, or his or her designee, is hereby authorized as 
Signature Authority to execute all documents necessary to implement and secure 
payment. 
 
SECTION 3.  This authorization is effective until rescinded by the Signature Authority or 
this Governing Body. 
 
 
 



 1 MAY 10 2016 #3 
540.13 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING A TEN-YEAR 
AGREEMENT WITH TWO CONSECUTIVE FIVE-YEAR 
OPTIONS WITH RAYNE SANTA BARBARA, INC., FOR 
SALT BRINE CONVEYANCE AT THE EL ESTERO 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT, EFFECTIVE 
JUNE 9, 2016 

WHEREAS, Rayne of Santa Barbara, Inc. (Rayne) is a private corporation which 
provides residential and commercial water conditioning services to customers in the 
Santa Barbara County area; 

WHEREAS, water conditioning equipment causes a sodium chloride (NaCl) salt brine to 
be produced as a byproduct of the water conditioning process;  

WHEREAS, the City owns and operates the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant (El 
Estero), located at 520 East Yanonali Street, Santa Barbara, California, which, as part 
of its treatment processes, utilizes an ocean outfall to dispose of the treated wastewater 
effluent;  

WHEREAS, the ocean outfall conveyance system utilized by El Estero has additional 
hydraulic capacity to accept salt brine waste;  

WHEREAS, Rayne has, at its sole cost and expense, obtained a National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) General Permit for Discharges with Low Threat 
to Water Quality (General Permit), issued by the State of California Regional Water 
Quality Control Board, and is now authorized by that agency to discharge its salt brine 
into the Pacific ocean through the El Estero ocean outfall by means of a salt brine 
conveyance system;  

WHEREAS, Rayne must comply with the General Permit, and all waste discharge 
requirements contained therein, in order to discharge its salt brine through a 
conveyance system into the Pacific Ocean at El Estero;  

WHEREAS, the City and Rayne desire to enter into an Agreement to allow Rayne to 
discharge salt brine through a salt brine conveyance system, to be constructed by 
Rayne at El Estero in accordance with the terms and conditions hereof, and, once 
accepted by the City, said conveyance will be assumed by the City and, thereafter, 
Rayne and other similar salt brine producers will be allowed to utilize the conveyance to 
discharge salt brine subject to payment of a City fee, per the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara (the “City Council”) has been 
presented with the form of the Agreement, and the City Council has examined and 
approved such document and desires to authorize and direct the execution of such 
document. 



 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. All of the recitals herein contained are true and correct and the City 
Council so finds. 

SECTION 2. The form of the Agreement, on file with the City Clerk, is hereby approved, 
and the Public Works Director of the City, or any such other officer of the City as the 
Public Works Director may designate (the “Authorized Officers”), are hereby authorized 
and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the City, to execute the Agreement in 
substantially said form. 

 



Agenda Item No.  4 

File Code No.  640.09 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Ariel Pierre Calonne, City Attorney 
 John Steve Doimas, Deputy City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT: Short-Term Residential Rental Subpoenas 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council receive certified copies of subpoenaed records related to unlawful vacation 
rentals that are subject to the City’s Ordinance prohibiting their operation. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On August 11, 2015, the City Council authorized the Mayor to sign, and the City Clerk's 
Office to serve, subpoenas on websites that have listings for vacation rentals in the City 
of Santa Barbara.  Pursuant to this authorization, the Mayor signed subpoenas which 
the City served on the websites. 
 
These subpoenas required the websites to appear and/or produce certified copies of 
certain records related to the operation of vacation rentals in the City.  If the 
subpoenaed parties fail to appear or produce the requested records by May 10, 2016 at 
4:00 pm, the Mayor is authorized to submit a report of noncompliance to the Santa 
Barbara Superior Court.  
 
Superior Court review is necessary before remedies can be sought for failure to comply 
with the legislative subpoena.  Upon an order from the court, a writ of attachment may 
be issued directing the Santa Barbara County Sheriff to bring the individual before the 
court.  Upon appearance before the court, a judge has jurisdiction to issue a contempt 
order.  The punishment for disobedience of a legislative subpoena is the same as if 
contempt has been committed in a civil trial in superior court. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: John Steve Doimas, Deputy City Attorney 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Ariel Pierre Calonne, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  5 
 

File Code No.  540.06 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Water Main Design Services  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 
Services Agreement with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc., in an amount not to exceed 
$600,000 for On-Call Water Main Design Services. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
Council has had a goal of replacing one percent (three miles) of the water distribution 
system (system) each year through the annual water main replacement program. In 
response to the drought, the Water Main Replacement Program was suspended in 
2013. The drought also forced operating changes in the system to accommodate for 
inflows from the City’s various groundwater wells, which has put extra demands on the 
system.  The changes to the system operating conditions, coupled with aging 
infrastructure, have resulted in the system experiencing 116 water main breaks over the 
past 12 months. This is a significant increase over recent years, in which water main 
breaks have generally totaled 60 to 80 per year.  
 
Project Description 
 
This proposed design contract will help to reinstate the Water Main Replacement 
Program.  Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. (Stantec), will provide survey, drafting, and 
engineering design services to support the water main replacement projects.  Stantec’s 
first task will be to design one mile of water mains, for immediate construction, under a 
water main replacement project that is currently out for bid. The water mains are located 
at critical areas in the system and have been prioritized for replacement. The remainder 
of Stantec’s contract will be to provide on-call engineering design services for water 
main emergency replacements on an as-needed basis.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Water Main Design Services 
May 10, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 

 

Considering the backlog of water main design work, and additional changes anticipated 
for the system, such as the reactivation of the Charles E. Meyer Desalination Plant in 
October 2016, issuing an on-call contract for water main design services is the most 
effective method for responding to emergency water main replacements.  
 
Consultant Selection Process for Engineering Services  
 
The Request for Proposal (RFP) was sent out to seven engineering firms, and five 
proposals were received. The proposals were evaluated and ranked based on a 
demonstrated understanding of the project and qualifications to perform the work, with 
Stantec being ranked first of the five.  The on-call engineering design contract is for an 
initial term of two years. 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Stantec in an amount not to exceed $600,000 for design.  This design 
contract could support up to eight miles of water main replacement projects, depending 
on the number and complexity of the projects. Stantec is experienced in this type of 
work and has successfully performed similar services for the City.  
 
Community Outreach 
 
Community outreach in the form of direct mails, postings on Nextdoor.com, and the 
City’s website will be used to support specific construction projects as they are 
developed and put out to bid.  
 
Project Funding 
 
The total design cost for this work is approximately $690,000.  In addition to the 
$600,000 contract with Stantec, it is estimated that $90,000 will be needed for project 
management by City staff and to complete the necessary environmental assessments.  
The design contract is funded by the Water Fund over two fiscal years.  It is anticipated 
that $200,000 of the contract will be expended in Fiscal Year 2016, and the remaining 
balance of $400,000 will be expended in Fiscal Year 2017.  There are sufficient 
appropriated funds in the Water Resources budget to cover the design contract costs.   
 
Construction projects developed through this design contract will be brought to the City 
Council either as capital improvement projects, or to the General Services Manager as 
maintenance and repair projects based on the nature and scope of the project. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACTS 
 
Replacing aged water distribution infrastructure is essential to managing a water utility 
and reducing water main breaks, which can lead to hundreds of thousands of gallons of 
water wasted.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Water Main Design Services 
May 10, 2016 
Page 3 
 

 

 

PREPARED BY: Linda Sumansky, Principal Engineer/CW/kts  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No.6 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Acceptance Of Grant Revenues, Authorization Of Increase And 

Appropriation Of Funds For The De La Vina Street Bridge 
Replacement Project 

 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council:  
 
A. Accept Federal Highway Administration Highway Bridge Program grant funding in 

the total amount of $885,300 for the De La Vina Street Bridge Replacement 
Project; 

B. Authorize the increase of estimated revenues and appropriations in the Fiscal 
Year 2016 Streets Capital Fund by $885,300 for the De La Vina Street Bridge 
Replacement Project; and  

C. Authorize a transfer of $45,000 from existing Streets Capital Fund appropriations 
to cover a portion of the City’s share of Local Funds associated with the design 
phase of the De La Vina Street Bridge Replacement Project. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On March 11, 2016, the City of Santa Barbara received authorization through Caltrans 
from the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) to initiate the engineering design 
phase of the De La Vina Bridge Replacement Project (Project). The FHWA provides 
funding for the replacement and rehabilitation of bridges located off the state and 
interstate highway system. Caltrans inspects all bridges across the state in accordance 
with National Bridge Inspection Standards.  
 
Project Description 
 
The Project is located immediately south of the intersection of De La Vina Street and 
Vernon Road in the City of Santa Barbara. According to Caltrans records, the Bridge 
was initially built in 1916 and widened in 1926. The Project will remove and replace the 
bridge with a new bridge that meets current seismic, safety and design standards. The 
Project will include realigning roadway approaches, constructing channel walls, planting 
landscape materials, and adding storm drain treatment facilities. The Project may also 



Council Agenda Report 
Accept Grant Revenues, Authorize An Increase And Appropriation Of Funds For The De 
La Vina Street Bridge Replacement Project 
May 10, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 

include removing building structures, abating hazardous building materials, and 
relocating domestic water and sanitary sewer facilities.  
 
Community Outreach 
 
Extensive community outreach for the Project is anticipated in the conceptual design 
phase and will continue until the bridge is constructed. The design will also be fully 
vetted through both an internal and public review process. Elements of community 
outreach will be included in the design contract as well as the in construction contract. 
Stake Holder Working Group (SHWG) meetings will be assembled for the Project, 
consisting of City and Consultant Project Managers, City Planning, and applicable staff 
from the City of Santa Barbara, Santa Barbara County Flood Control, and Caltrans. The 
SHWG will review and provide Project input through three distinct design phases: 
Conceptual, Preliminary, and Final. The Project will be reviewed by the Architectural 
Board of Review. The level of environmental documentation anticipated for the National 
Environmental Policy Act is a Categorical Exclusion with Technical Studies. Additional 
public information will be disseminated throughout the Project in a timely manner, 
similar to what has been done for other recently completed bridge replacement projects. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The FHWA has delegated the authority to administer the Local Highway Bridge 
Program (HBP) to Caltrans for the State of California. Federal HBP funds will be used to 
reimburse the City for 88.53 percent of eligible design, right of way, and construction 
phase costs. City funds are needed for the remaining 11.47 percent of eligible costs and 
any ineligible items that may be required from boards or commissions. 
 
The following table summarizes the estimated total project design costs: 
 

De La Vina Bridge 
Replacement Project City Share Federal 

Share Total Project Costs 

Design (Consultant) $86,025 $663,975 $750,000 
Estimated City Staff & 
Environmental Costs $28,102 $216,898 $245,000 

Estimated Other Costs 
(including non-participating 
items) 

$20,573 $4,427 $25,000 

Subtotal Design $134,700 $885,300 $1,020,000 
 
 

 
The total City share of design costs is approximately $134,700. It is anticipated that the 
design phase will take approximately three years for completion. Therefore, the City’s 
share of design phase costs is planned to be spread out over the next several years. 
The City match for the design phase of this Project comes in part from the recent sale of 



Council Agenda Report 
Accept Grant Revenues, Authorize An Increase And Appropriation Of Funds For The De 
La Vina Street Bridge Replacement Project 
May 10, 2016 
Page 3 
 

 

three properties associated with the Cota Bridge Replacement Project. The remaining 
City match for the design phase is planned to come from the future sale of a property 
acquired for the Mason Bridge Replacement Project.  
 
The requested transfer of $45,000 will come from the Pavement Maintenance capital 
project. Pavement Maintenance will be reimbursed that same amount early in Fiscal 
Year 2017 from the sale of the above-mentioned properties. 
 
The total project cost is currently estimated at approximately $12 million. This cost 
includes estimates for the right of way and construction phases, which will be further 
refined during design development. The City match for right of way and construction 
phases of work has not yet been identified. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Vicinity Map 
 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/JC/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 

Vicinity Map -  De La Vina Bridge Replacement Project 

 

De La Vina 
Bridge 

Mission Creek 



Agenda Item No.  7 
File Code No.  610.04 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administration, Housing and Human Services Division, Community 
 Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: 2016-17 Annual Action Plan Related to Housing and Community 

Development Programs 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Adopt the 2016-17 Annual Action Plan for submittal to the U.S. Department of 

Housing and Urban Development (HUD); and 
 
B. Authorize the City Administrator to sign all necessary documents to submit the 

City’s 2016-2017 Annual Action Plan to HUD. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City annually receives Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds and 
HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) funds from HUD. 
 
In order for the City to receive these funds, HUD requires that a Consolidated Plan 
(ConPlan) be prepared and submitted every five years. The 2015-2019 ConPlan, 
adopted by the City Council on May 5, 2015, identified the City’s housing and 
community development needs and detailed the City’s five-year strategy and goals to 
address those needs with HUD-allocated funds.  
 
In addition to the ConPlan, the City must submit an Annual Action Plan (AAP), which 
identifies the specific activities that will be undertaken to meet the goals stated in the 
five-year ConPlan. The 2016-17 AAP is the second program year of the ConPlan and 
includes CDBG activities approved by Council on March 22, 2016. 
 
The Annual Action Plan is due to HUD by May 15, 2016, and it will cover the program 
year beginning July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017. 
 
Current year entitlements combined with reallocations and repayments from prior years 
bring the total funding for program year 2016-17 to approximately $1.7 million. A 



Council Agenda Report 
2016-17 Annual Action Plan Related to Housing and Community Development Programs 
May 10, 2016 
Page 2 

 

breakdown of the expected resources can be found starting on page 12 of the Annual 
Action Plan.  
CDBG and HOME funds will be used toward activities that satisfy priority areas 
identified in the City’s ConPlan, including: 
 
1. Assisting the Homeless  
 
2. Decent Affordable Housing  
 
3. Decent Housing Availability  
 
4. Public Facilities and Infrastructure Improvements  
 
5. Economic Opportunity  
 
6. CDBG Planning and Administration  
 
7. HOME Planning and Administration  
 
A list of specific projects for program year 2016-17 can be found in the Annual Action 
Plan. 
 
Development Process  
 
Elements of the 2016 Annual Action Plan were developed with active citizen input, 
including the Community Development and Human Services Committee, a citizen 
advisory committee that made funding recommendations to Council. Efforts to 
encourage citizen participation included public hearings, noticing in newspapers, and 
announcements on the City website.  
 
HUD requires that at least two public hearings be held during development of the 
Annual Action Plan. The first was held September 22, 2015, and the second was held 
March 22, 2016. Also, in accordance with federal regulations, the draft Annual Action 
Plan was made available on the City website and in the office of the City Clerk, Main 
Public Library, and the Community Development Department for the required 45-day 
public review period, which began on March 23, 2016 and ended on May 6. Notice of 
the availability of the Draft Annual Action Plan was published in the Santa Barbara 
News-Press and was featured on the City website homepage. 
 
A copy of the Annual Action Plan is available for review by City Council members in the 
City Clerk’s Office at City Hall at 735 Anacapa Street. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
2016-17 Annual Action Plan Related to Housing and Community Development Programs 
May 10, 2016 
Page 3 

 

PREPARED BY: Elizabeth Stotts, Community Development Programs Specialist 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



 1 MAY 10 2016 #8 
640.09 

ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING CHAPTER 28.12 (ZONE 
MAP) OF TITLE 28 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE 
PERTAINING TO ZONING OF ASSESSOR’S PARCEL 
NUMBER 051-240-008 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

Sheet SD01 of the City’s Sectional Zone Maps specified in Chapter 28.12 (Zone 
Map) of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is hereby amended to designate Assessor’s 
Parcel Number 051-240-008 as R-3/SP-4/SD-2 (Limited Multiple-Family Residence 
Zone, Rancho Arroyo Specific Plan and Upper State Street Area Overlay) Zones. 
 



Agenda Item No.  11 
File Code No.  520.02 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administration Division, Fire Department 
 
SUBJECT: 9-1-1 Emergency Dispatch And Cell Phone Call Routing 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council receive a presentation and consider support of Assembly Bill 1564 
(Williams), 9-1-1 Emergency Response – Wireless Routing Optimization.  
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Fire Chief Pat McElroy will be presenting a history of the 9-1-1 system in California and 
Santa Barbara and how it has been challenged by the rapid proliferation of cellphones. 
 
Assembly Bill 1564 addresses routing delays by specifying that a call from a cell device 
may be routed to a local Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) other than the California 
Highway Patrol (CHP), if: 

• The call originates from a location other than a freeway, 
• The alternate routing is economically and technologically feasible, 
• The alternate routing will benefit public safety, and 
• It will result in 9-1-1 calls being routed to the responsible responding jurisdiction 

that covers the location of the call origination point. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Patrick J. McElroy, Fire Chief 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Patrick J. McElroy, Fire Chief 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No. 12 

File Code No.  640.07 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appeal Of Small Cell Wireless Communications Facility Proposed In 

The Public Right-Of-Way Of The 300 Block Of Grove Lane  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Uphold the appeal of Jan and Maria Kaestner of the Architectural Board of 

Review’s decision to grant Final Approval, and approve a revised design for the 
small cell wireless communications facility proposed by Verizon Wireless within 
the 300 block of Grove Lane; and 
 

B. Direct Staff to return to Council with decision and findings reflecting the outcome 
of the appeal. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
Federal Communications Commission regulations require local governments to act upon 
applications for wireless facility installations within certain time limits.  Recent state 
legislation (AB 57) deems wireless facility applications approved if the local government 
fails to act within the time limits proscribed by the FCC regulations.  Therefore, in order to 
ensure a timely action on this application, the appeal hearing has been scheduled in an 
expedited manner. 
 
The appellants raise several concerns regarding the proposal to place a small cell wireless 
communication facility on an existing utility pole in the public right-of-way, including lack of 
adequate public noticing, failure to analyze alternative locations, lack of consideration to 
aesthetics, safety concerns, and inadequacy of the concealment design.   
 
Staff concurs with the appellants’ assertion that the small cell wireless facility proposal, as 
approved by the Architectural Board of Review, does not effectively minimize the visual 
impacts of the facility. As such, staff recommends Council uphold the appeal and approve 
a revised design, locating the meter pedestal and equipment within the parkway rather 
than directly on the utility pole.  
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Small Cell Wireless Communications Facility Proposed In The Public Right-Of-
Way Of The 300 Block Of Grove Lane  
May 10, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On April 7, 2016, an appeal was filed by Jan and Maria Kaestner, neighbors to the 
project site, of the Architectural Board of Review’s (ABR) Project Design and Final 
Approval of the project on March 28, 2016 (Attachment 1 – Appellants’ Letter). The 
project involves a proposal for a new small cell Verizon wireless facility and associated 
equipment on an existing 25-foot tall wooden utility pole. All project components would 
be located within the public right-of-way, in the 300 block of Grove Lane, in the western 
portion of the San Roque neighborhood. The project also proposes trenching across the 
public street to obtain electrical power and installation of various pieces of new wireless 
radio and metering equipment on the existing utility pole (Attachment 2 – Project 
Discussion and Attachment 3 – Photo Simulations).  
 
Pursuant to Santa Barbara Municipal Code (SBMC) §28.94.030.DD.1.c., a wireless 
cellular antenna installation may be exempt from the requirement of a Conditional Use 
Permit if the Community Development Director can make specific findings regarding 
antenna height, resource impacts, and visual impacts. The purpose of the ABR’s review 
and action on this application was to provide input to the Community Development 
Director regarding any potential visual impacts. In doing so, the ABR “may take action 
regarding the location of the antenna(s) on the site, color and size of the proposed 
antennas so as to minimize any adverse visual impacts.” 
 
Federal Statutes, Federal Communications Commission (FCC) Regulations, and 
State Statutes related to Wireless Facilities 
 
Federal Statutes: 
 
 The Telecommunications Act of 1996 
 
In 1996, Congress passed the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the Telecom Act).  The 
Telecom Act largely preserved local land use regulation over wireless facilities with 
some important limitations: 

• No explicit or effective prohibitions on wireless service 
• No unreasonable discrimination amongst carriers 
• No local regulation of radio frequency emissions, if the facilities meet FCC 

regulations 
 

To the extent the separation and access requirements found in Municipal Code Section 
28.94.030.DD are more restrictive than the FCC regulations concerning radio frequency 
emissions, the City’s standards are preempted by federal law. In addition to the 
limitations on local land use regulation, the Telecom Act required local governments to 
act upon wireless facility applications within a reasonable time.  Following the adoption 
of the Telecom Act, the FCC issued regulations defining what is considered to be a 
reasonable amount of time for various types of wireless facility applications.  These 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Small Cell Wireless Communications Facility Proposed In The Public Right-Of-
Way Of The 300 Block Of Grove Lane  
May 10, 2016 
Page 3 

 

timeframes have been compared to the shot clocks employed in basketball games and 
are commonly referred to as “shot clocks”. 
 
 The Middle Class Tax Relief Act and Job Creation Act of 2012 
 
In 2012, Congress passed the Middle Class Tax Relief Act and Job Creation Act.  
Section 6409(a) of the Middle Class Tax Relief Act and Job Creation Act (Section 
6409(a)) provides, in part, that “a State or local government may not deny, and shall 
approve, any eligible facilities request for a modification of an existing wireless tower or 
base station that does not substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower 
or base station.”  In adopting Section 6409(a), Congress stated an intent to encourage 
and facilitate the installation of new wireless facilities. 
 
FCC Regulations: 
 
In 2009, the FCC adopted regulations establishing the first shot clocks.  These 
regulations required local governments to act upon wireless facilities applications within 
90 days for collocations (installations of additional antennas at locations that already 
have antennas) and 150 days for new antennas.  Importantly, these regulations were 
not self-enforcing.  The regulations required wireless carriers to file a lawsuits in order to 
enforce the shot clock provisions. 
 
On January 8, 2015, the FCC adopted new regulations implementing Section 6409(a).  
These regulations went into effect on April 8, 2015.  The regulations clarify the 
application of certain federal environmental and historic preservation statutes to exclude 
smaller wireless facilities (small cells and distributed antenna systems DAS)) from more 
extensive review, define the terms used by Congress in Section 6409(a), and establish 
new shot clock procedures recognizing a new class of wireless facility applications – the 
“6409(a) modification.”  These regulations effectively establish a new class of wireless 
facility applications that local governments are required to approve on an expedited 
processing schedule.  The new shot clocks are as follows: 
 

• 6409(a) collocations       60 days 
• Collocations that do not qualify as 6409(a)   90 days 
• New sites                150 days 

 
When adopting the new regulations introducing the new shot clock for 6409(a) 
collocations, the FCC adopted a deemed granted remedy 6409(a) collocations, but 
refused to extend the remedy to cases where local governments fail to render a 
decision on other applications within the specified shot clocks.  
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Small Cell Wireless Communications Facility Proposed In The Public Right-Of-
Way Of The 300 Block Of Grove Lane  
May 10, 2016 
Page 4 

 

State Statutes: 
 

Public Utilities Code Sections 7901 and 7901.1 
 
Section 7901 of the California Public Utilities Code grants certain telephone 
corporations a state-wide franchise to use the right of way for telephone infrastructure 
(including wireless antennas), so long as the installations do not interfere with the use of 
the road or the sidewalks.  Section 7901.1 reserves to local governments the right to 
control the time, place, and manner of the installation of telecommunications facilities in 
the right of way so as to avoid conflicts.   
 
When these statutes are applied in conjunction with the “effective prohibition” limitations 
from the Telecommunications Act to wireless facilities applications, local governments 
are allowed to regulate the appearance of installations and may regulate the location of 
the installations in order to avoid conflicts within the right of way, but local governments 
cannot prohibit the use of the right of way or explicitly or effectively prevent the provision 
of wireless service. 
 

AB 57 (Government Code Section 65964.1)  
 
AB57 became effective on January 1, 2016 and provides that a collocation or siting 
application for a wireless telecommunications facility is deemed approved if:  

1) The city or county fails to approve or disapprove the application within the 
reasonable time periods specified in applicable decisions of the FCC;  

2) All required public notices have been provided regarding the application; and  
3) The applicant has provided a notice to the city or county that the reasonable time 

period has lapsed.  
 
The City is obligated to hear this appeal in an expeditious manner in order to comply 
with the FCC regulations.  Before the adoption of AB 57, if a local government did not 
render a decision on a wireless application within the time specified under the 
applicable FCC shot clock, the wireless carrier had to seek an order from a court to 
require the local jurisdiction to make a decision on the application.   AB 57 reverses the 
positions of the wireless carrier and the local government.  Under AB 57, if a local 
government does not approve or disapprove the wireless facility application within the 
period of time specified in the FCC regulations, the application is deemed approved and 
the local government must seek a court order to block the installation. 
 
Architectural Board of Review (ABR) 
 
The project was reviewed at two ABR meetings, on August 25, 2015 and March 28, 
2016. At the first ABR meeting, the Board had questions regarding the siting of the 
proposed equipment and possible noise associated with proposed radio equipment, and 
requested that the meter pedestal and equipment cabinet be relocated south of the 
utility pole to avoid possible damage to parkway trees and that alternate locations for 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Small Cell Wireless Communications Facility Proposed In The Public Right-Of-
Way Of The 300 Block Of Grove Lane  
May 10, 2016 
Page 5 

 

the conduit be studied to stay clear of tree roots. One Board member suggested that the 
applicant consider other equipment locations that were not as visible. No public 
comment was received at this hearing, though property owners within 300 feet of the 
site were provided mailed notice of the hearing. The Board continued the project 
indefinitely, with direction to locate the equipment cabinets south of the utility pole and 
add appropriate landscaping screening around the equipment cabinets (Attachment 4 – 
ABR Meeting Minutes). 
 
The project returned on March 28, 2016 for additional review by the ABR.  Rather than 
pursue a design with relocated equipment cabinets south of the utility pole and 
associated landscape screening, the applicant elected to remove the proposed 
equipment cabinets and instead propose all radio and metering equipment on the utility 
pole. When questioned by the ABR, the applicant responded that the responsibility for 
maintenance of landscaping screening of the equipment cabinets was ambiguous and 
uncertain, and so they opted to eliminate the cabinets and place all equipment on the 
utility pole.   
 
At that hearing, a neighbor and one of the appellants, Mr. Kaestner, questioned the 
need for the facility in this location and asserted that the addition of this above-ground 
equipment would make future utility undergrounding efforts more difficult. Mr. Kaestner 
also voiced concerns regarding health and safety impacts of radio frequency in close 
proximity to residential development. 
 
The Board stated that it had not provided the applicant with direction to pursue a design 
that placed all equipment on the utility pole. When asked if the equipment could be 
placed within an underground vault, the applicant stated that there are various problems 
associated with underground vaults, including over-excavation, sidewalk closure for 
maintenance, and additional ventilation requirements, and that very little equipment for 
these small cell installations can actually be placed in an underground vault.  
 
An ABR member made a summary closing statement that the proposal was 
“unfortunate but acceptable.” The Board eventually voted 4/0/0 to grant Project Design 
and Final Approval of the project as submitted, and made the “no visual impact findings” 
required by SBMC §28.94.030.DD.1.c. The Board found that the above-ground cabinet 
design was worse than the pole-mounted equipment design since that solution could be 
partially screened by existing street trees and was less obtrusive than the addition of 
new equipment cabinets in the parkway.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Small Cell Wireless Communications Facility Proposed In The Public Right-Of-
Way Of The 300 Block Of Grove Lane  
May 10, 2016 
Page 6 

 

Appeal Issues 
 
Inadequate Public Notice 
 
The appellants assert that the City did not provide adequate notice to “affected property 
owners,” thus limiting their due process rights. SBMC §22.86.040.A. lists seven types of 
projects that require mailed public notice prior to ABR’s review of the application. 
Although a project of this scope does not require such a notice, the City did provide 
mailed notice to property owners within 300 feet of the project site as a courtesy. In 
addition, a large yellow “Notice of Development” sign was required to be placed on the 
subject utility pole. Therefore, staff believes sufficient notice was provided to 
surrounding residents. 
 
Review of Alternative Sites 
 
The appellants state that the applicant failed to offer alternative sites to the proposed 
location and the ABR failed to inquire as to the availability of alternative sites.  
 
In the application materials, the ABR received a project narrative that included some 
discussion of site alternatives (Attachment 2). As such, the ABR review focused on the 
proposed project location, and the Board did not direct the applicant to study other 
locations. In general, the ABR may request that an applicant consider other locations for 
wireless facilities if the proposed site is highly visible, is in close proximity to residential 
homes, or there are preferred locations with better screening solutions. In some cases, 
proposed wireless facilities in the public right-of-way have been relocated, painted, or 
redesigned with additional concealment due to visual or compatibility concerns.  
 
While the ABR may request consideration of alternative sites, it may not deny a wireless 
application on the grounds that service is already provided in the area.  In fact, the FCC 
has ruled that localities “shall not regulate in a manner that prohibits or has the effect of 
prohibiting the provision of personal wireless services.” The FCC has ruled that this 
provision prohibits a State or a local government from denying a personal wireless service 
facility siting application solely because service is available from another provider. 
 
Aesthetic Considerations 
 
The appellants state that the ABR failed to have the applicant demonstrate that the 
proposed design was the “least obtrusive option.” Staff believes that finding ideal 
screening solutions for new wireless facilities on highly visible poles is challenging.  The 
ABR has been less likely to require equipment to be placed underground or screened 
within equipment pedestal cabinets because some Board members believe 
undergrounding is a design hardship and equipment pedestals contribute to more visual 
clutter in neighborhoods. In particular, ground-mounted cabinets are more susceptible 
to graffiti.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Small Cell Wireless Communications Facility Proposed In The Public Right-Of-
Way Of The 300 Block Of Grove Lane  
May 10, 2016 
Page 7 

 

Initially, the ABR directed the applicant to relocate and screen the then-proposed 
equipment cabinets within the right-of-way. In response to the applicant’s assertion that 
maintenance of required landscape screening was challenging, the ABR entertained the 
proposal of placing all equipment on the utility pole. Prior to rendering a decision, the 
ABR compared the initial proposal with the revised proposal to mount radio and 
metering equipment on the utility pole and deemed the subsequent proposal the 
superior option of the two presented, in part, because existing street trees would help 
screen the pole-mounted equipment. However, the ABR was not presented drawings or 
a photo-simulation of an option reflecting their initial direction to relocate the above-
ground cabinets south of the utility pole.  
 
Since 2006, the ABR and the Historic Landmarks Commission (HLC) have approved 
many similar pole-mounted small cell wireless installations as part of the Distributed 
Antenna Systems (DAS) first developed by NextG Communications. In many cases, the 
installations are in heavily travelled pedestrian areas where equipment cabinets would 
be more visible and potentially impede circulation. Above-ground equipment cabinets in 
this particular location, within a parkway, would not present those same challenges. 
Therefore, staff believes that the adverse visual impacts related to the equipment to 
support the antenna have not been minimized to the maximum extent possible, and 
recommends a design alternative consistent with the ABR’s initial direction.   
 
Safety Considerations 
 
The appellants state that the ABR failed to consider structural/safety concerns regarding 
earthquakes, fire or vehicular accidents, and toxic chemical hazards associated with back-
up lead/acid batteries on site. These considerations are outside of the ABR’s purview to 
review wireless facility applications solely for aesthetic purposes. The City did require a 
radio frequency (RF) study for the site, which demonstrated that the proposed installation 
will be within the safe human exposure guidelines and prevailing standards for limiting 
public exposure to radio frequency (Attachment 5 – RF Study).       
 
Concealment Efforts 
 
The appellants assert that the ABR failed to require concealment of the installation to 
the fullest feasible extent. Concealment techniques are relatively limited in these 
instances because small cell wireless facilities on utility poles are more difficult to 
camouflage, screen, or conceal than wireless antenna facilities on buildings. Other 
small wireless facilities at various public locations have been required in the past to 
place radio equipment within cabinets or in underground vaults. The ABR did not further 
pursue their initial direction to relocate the equipment cabinets south of the utility pole, 
or explore placing some equipment underground after the applicant asserted only 
minimal equipment could be contained in such a vault.  
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Small Cell Wireless Communications Facility Proposed In The Public Right-Of-
Way Of The 300 Block Of Grove Lane  
May 10, 2016 
Page 8 

 

Standard of Review 
 
Pursuant to Municipal Code Section 28.94.030.DD (Attachment 6), the role of the 
Architectural Board of Review, and the City Council on appeal, is to review the location, 
color, and size of the proposed wireless facility in order to minimize any adverse visual 
impacts.  The City Council should use the Design Review Guidelines for Wireless 
Communication Facilities/Antennas to evaluate whether the application has minimized 
the adverse visual impacts (Attachment 7).  If the City Council concludes that either the 
approved application, or an alternate design, has successfully minimized the adverse 
visual impacts, the Council may approve the application by making a finding of “no 
visual impacts.”   
 
Conclusion 
 
The ABR clearly struggled with finding an appropriate concealment solution for this 
small cell wireless application. The ABR determined the project was consistent with other 
approved small cell wireless locations and the screening provided by existing street trees 
was acceptable. Based on our vast experience working with multiple wireless providers to 
find aesthetically acceptable solutions for a variety of locations, staff believes the proposal 
can be further improved and the approved project is not the least obtrusive option 
available for screening equipment.  
 
Therefore, staff recommends that Council uphold the appeal and approve a revised design 
consistent with ABR’s initial direction to provide metering and radio equipment in above-
ground cabinets, in a location within the parkway that provides optimal screening from 
public view.  
 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Determination 
 
The proposed project is subject to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review, 
and the Environmental Analyst has determined that the project would be categorically 
exempt pursuant to CEQA Guidelines §15301(b) Minor Alteration of Existing Facilities.  
 
NOTE:  The project file and plans were delivered separately to City Council for review and 
are available for public review at the City Clerk’s office. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Appellants’ letter, received April 7, 2016 

2. Applicant’s Project Summary Discussion 
3. Approved Project Photo Simulations 
4. ABR Minutes, dated August 17, 2015 and March 28, 2016 
5. Project Radio Frequency Study 
6. SBMC §28.94.030.DD (Conditional Use Permits – 

Television, Radio and Cellular Antennas) 
7. Design Review Guidelines for Wireless Communication 

Facilities/Antennas 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Small Cell Wireless Communications Facility Proposed In The Public Right-Of-
Way Of The 300 Block Of Grove Lane  
May 10, 2016 
Page 9 

 

  
PREPARED BY: Jaime Limón, Senior Planner II 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 2











ATTACHMENT 3



v
e

ri
z
o

n
"
 

G
R

O
V

E
 

L
A

N
E

 
S

C
l

 
A

R
T
IS

T
IC

 
en

g1
ne

en
ng

 
P

U
B

L
I
C

 
R

O
W

 
A

D
J

A
C

E
N

T
 

T
CJ

: 
3

6
6

5
 

S
U

N
S

E
T

 
D

R
I
V

E
 

S
A

N
T

A
 

B
A

R
B

A
R

A
 

C
A

 
9

3
1

 
0

5
 

A
E
s
im

s
.c

o
m

 

8
7

7.
9

A
E
.s

im
s
 

L
O

O
K

IN
G

 
E

A
S

T
 

F
R

O
M

 
B

R
E

N
T

 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 

A
C

C
U

R
A

C
Y

 
O

F
 

P
H

O
T

O
 

S
IM

U
L

A
T

I
O

N
 

B
A

S
E

D
 

U
P

O
N

 
I

N
F"

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 

P
R

O
V

ID
E

D
 

B
Y

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
A

P
P

L
IC

A
N

T
. 





ABR MINUTES August 17, 2015 

CONCEPT REVIEW - NEW ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING 

7. 300 BLK GROVE LANE
 (6:30) Assessor’s Parcel Number: ROW-002-616 

Application Number:  MST2015-00381 
Agent:    Sequoia Deployment Services, Inc. 

(Proposal for a new small cell wireless communications facility for Verizon including one 
2'-0" diameter Cantenna and associated equipment to be mounted on top of an existing 25'-
0" tall wooden utility pole.  Also proposed is a new meter pedestal and pad with equipment 
cabinet and ground level handhole.) 

(Action may be taken if sufficient information is provided.  Requires No Visual 
Impact Findings and a Public Works Encroachment Permit.) 

Actual time: 6:58 p.m. 

Present: Paul V. Gerst, Agent for Verizon Wireless. 

Public comment opened at 7:03 p.m.  As no one wished to speak, public comment was 
closed. 

Motion: Continued indefinitely to Full Board with comments: 
1) Return with revised drawings showing the cabinet located to the south

side of the pole.
2) Provide appropriate landscaping around the cabinet on both sides.
3) The Board finds the proposed cantenna and associated equipment

acceptable as submitted.
Action: Wittausch/Poole, 4/1/0.  Motion carried.  (Hopkins opposed, Gradin/Cung 

absent). 

ATTACHMENT 4



 
 
 
 
 
 
ABR MINUTES March 28, 2016 
 
CONCEPT REVIEW - CONTINUED ITEM 
 
4. 300 BLK GROVE LANE 
 (4:35) Assessor’s Parcel Number: ROW-002-616 
  Application Number:  MST2015-00381 
 Agent:    Sequoia Deployment Services, Inc. 

(Proposal for a new small cell wireless communications facility for Verizon including one 
2'-0" diameter Cantenna and associated equipment to be mounted on top of an existing 25'-
0" tall wooden utility pole.  Also proposed is a new meter pedestal and pad with equipment 
cabinet and ground level handhole.) 
 
(Second Concept Review.  Action may be taken if sufficient information is provided.  
Requires No Visual Impact Findings and a Public Works Encroachment Permit.  
Project was last reviewed on August 17, 2015.) 
 
Actual time: 4:32 p.m. 
 
Present: Pete Shubin, Agent for Verizon Wireless. 
 
Public comment opened at 4:35 p.m. 
 
1) Jan Kaestner (neighbor), opposition; expressed aesthetic concerns regarding the 

need for more wireless equipment on poles near his property. 
 
Public comment closed at 4:37 p.m. 
 
Motion 1: Project Design and Final Approval as submitted. 
Action: Cung/Tripp, 4/0/0.  Motion carried.  (Gradin/Miller/Wittausch absent). 
 
The ten-day appeal period was announced. 
 
Motion 2: To reopen Item #4, 300 Block Grove Lane to correct the motion to 

include the findings made for no adverse visual impacts resulting from 
wireless antennas and equipment installation in consideration of 
compatibility with nearby buildings, appropriate screening, site 
location, and antennae color and size. 

Action: Hopkins/Tripp, 4/0/0.  Motion carried.  (Gradin/Miller/Wittausch absent). 
 



H 

c 
Verizon Wireless • Proposed Base Station (Site No. 285359 "Grove Lane SC1 ") 

3665 Sunset Drive • Santa Barbara, California 

Statement of Hammett & Edison, Inc., Consulting Engineers 

The firm of Hammett & Edison, Inc., Consulting Engineers, has been retained on behalf of Verizon 

Wireless, a personal wireless telecommunications carrier, to evaluate the base station (Site No. 285359 

"Grove Lane SCI") proposed to be located near 3665 Sunset Drive in Santa Barbara, California, for 

compliance with appropriate guidelines limiting human exposure to radio frequency ("RF") 

electromagnetic fields. 

Executive Summary 

Verizon proposes to install a bi-sector cylindrical antenna on the utility pole sited west of 

3665 Sunset Drive in Santa Barbara. The proposed operation will comply with the FCC 

guidelines limiting public exposure to RF energy. 

Prevailing Exposure Standards 

The U.S. Congress reqmres that the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") evaluate its 

actions for possible significant impact on the environment. A summary of the FCC's exposure limits 

is shown in Figure 1. These limits apply for continuous exposures and are intended to provide a 

prudent margin of safety for all persons, regardless of age, gender, size, or health. The most restrictive 

FCC limit for exposures of unlimited duration to radio frequency energy for several personal wireless 

services are as follows: 

Wireless Service 

Microwave (Point-to-Point) 
WiFi (and unlicensed uses) 
BRS (Broadband Radio) 
WCS (Wireless Communication) 
AWS (Advanced Wireless) 
PCS (Personal Communication) 
Cellular 
SMR (Specialized Mobile Radio) 
700MHz 
[most restrictive frequency range] 

Frequency Band 

5-80 GHz
2-6

2,600 MHz 
2,300 
2,100 
1,950 

870 
855 
700 

30-300

Occupational Limit 

5.00 mW/cm2 

5.00 
5.00 
5.00 
5.00 
5.00 
2.90 
2.85 
2.40 
1.00 

General Facility Requirements 

Public Limit 

1.00 mW/cm2 

1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
0.58 
0.57 
0.48 
0.20 

Base stations typically consist of two distinct parts: the electronic transceivers (also called "radios" or 

"channels") that are connected to the traditional wired telephone lines, and the passive antennas that 

send the wireless signals created by the radios out to be received by individual subscriber units. The 

transceivers are often located at ground level and are connected to the antennas by coaxial cables. A 

small antenna for reception of GPS signals is also required, mounted with a clear view of the sky. 

HAMMETT & EDISON, INC. 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS 

SAN FRANCISCO 

A9J8 
Page 1 of4 

ATTACHMENT 5



H 

( 
Verizon Wireless • Proposed Base Station (Site No. 285359 11Grove Lane SC1 ") 

3665 Sunset Drive • Santa Barbara, California 

Because of the short wavelength of the frequencies assigned by the FCC for wireless services, the 

antennas require line-of-sight paths for their signals to propagate well and so are installed at some 

height above ground. The antennas are designed to concentrate their energy toward the horizon, with 

very little energy wasted toward the sky or the ground. This means that it is generally not possible for 

exposure conditions to approach the maximum permissible exposure limits without being physically 

very near the antennas. 

Computer Modeling Method 

The FCC provides direction for determining compliance in its Office of Engineering and Technology 

Bulletin No. 65, "Evaluating Compliance with FCC-Specified Guidelines for Human Exposure to 

Radio Frequency Radiation," dated August 1997. Figure 2 describes the calculation methodologies, 

reflecting the facts that a directional antenna's radiation pattern is not fully formed at locations very 

close by (the "near-field" effect) and that at greater distances the power level from an energy source 

decreases with the square of the distance from it (the "inverse square law"). The conservative nature 
of this method for evaluating exposure conditions has been verified by numerous field tests. 

Site and Facility Description 

Based upon information provided by Verizon, including construction drawings by M.Squared 

Engineers, dated February 5, 2015, it is proposed to install one Amphenol Model CWB070X06F 

bi-sector cylindrical antenna on top of the existing 25-foot utility pole sited along Grove Lane west of 

the residence located at 3665 Sunset Drive in Santa Barbara. The antenna would be mounted at an 

effective height of about 26Y2 feet above ground. For the limited purposes of this study, it is assumed 

that the antenna would employ no downtilt and that the maximum effective radiated power in any 

direction would be 2, 140 watts, representing simultaneous operation at 1,610 watts for A WS and 

530 watts for 700 MHz service; no operation on PCS or cellular frequencies is assumed to be proposed 

from this site. There are reported no other wireless telecommunications base stations at the site or 

nearby. 

Study Results 

For a person anywhere at ground, the maximum RF exposure level due to the proposed Verizon 

operation is calculated to be 0.031 mW/cm2, which is 5.9% of the applicable public exposure limit. 

The maximum calculated level at the top-floor elevation of any nearby residence* is 7.3% of the public 

exposure limit. It should be noted that these results include several "worst-case" assumptions and 
therefore are expected to overstate actual power density levels from the proposed operation. 

* Located at least 30 feet away, based on photographs from Google Maps.

HAMMEIT & EDISON, INC. 
CONSUL TING ENGINEERS 

SAN FRANCISCO 

A9J8 
Page 2 of 4 



H 

( 
Verizon Wireless • Proposed Base Station (Site No. 285359 "Grove Lane SC1 ") 

3665 Sunset Drive • Santa Barbara, California 

Recommended Mitigation Measures 

Due to its mounting location and height, the Verizon antenna would not be accessible to unauthorized 

persons, and so no mitigation measures are necessary to comply with the FCC public exposure 

guidelines. To prevent occupational exposures in excess of the FCC guidelines, it is recommended 

that appropriate RF safety training, to include review of personal monitor use and lockout/tagout 

procedures, be provided to all authorized personnel who have access to the antenna, including 

employees and contractors of Verizon and of the utility company. No access within 14 feet directly in 

front of the antenna itself, such as might occur during certain maintenance activities, should be 

allowed while the base station is in operation, unless other measures can be demonstrated to ensure 

that occupational protection requirements are met. It is recommended that explanatory signs t be 

posted on the pole at or below the antenna, readily visible from any angle of approach to persons who 

might need to work within that distance. 

Conclusion 

Based on the information and analysis above, it is the undersigned's professional opm1on that 

operation of the base station proposed by Verizon Wireless near 3665 Sunset Drive in Santa Barbara, 

California, will comply with the prevailing standards for limiting public exposure to radio frequency 

energy and, therefore, will not for this reason cause a significant impact on the environment. The 

highest calculated level in publicly accessible areas is much less than the prevailing standards allow 

for exposures of unlimited duration. This finding is consistent with measurements of actual exposure 

conditions taken at other operating base stations. Training authorized personnel and posting 

explanatory signs is recommended to establish compliance with occupational exposure limits. 

t Signs should comply with OET-65 color, symbol, and content recommendations. Contact information should be 
provided (e.g., a telephone number) to arrange for access to restricted areas. The selection of language(s) is not an 
engineering matter, and guidance from the landlord, local zoning or health authority, or appropriate professionals 
may be required. Signage may also need to comply with the requirements of California Public Utilities 
Commission General Order No. 95. 

HAMMETI & EDISON, INC. 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS 

SAN FRANCISCO 

A9J8 

Page 3 of4 



H 

Verizon Wireless • Proposed Base Station (Site No. 285359 "Grove Lane SC1 ") 
3665 Sunset Drive • Santa Barbara, California 

Authorship 

The undersigned author of this statement is a qualified Professional Engineer, holding California 

Registration No. E-20309, which expires on March 31, 2017. This work has been carried out under 

her direction, and all statements are true and correct of her own knowledge except, where noted, when 

data has been supplied by others, which data she believes to be correct. 

April 28, 2015 

HAMMETI & EDISON, INC. 
CONSUL TING ENGINEERS 

SAN FRANCISCO 

A9J8 

Page4of4 



c 
FCC Radio Frequency Protection Guide 

The U.S. Congress required (1996 Telecom Act) the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") 
to adopt a nationwide human exposure standard to ensure that its licensees do not, cumulatively, have 
a significant impact on the environment. The FCC adopted the limits from Report No. 86, "Biological 
Effects and Exposure Criteria for Radiofrequency Electromagnetic Fields," published in 1986 by the 
Congressionally chartered National Council on Radiation Protection and Measurements ("NCRP"). 
Separate limits apply for occupational and public exposure conditions, with the latter limits generally 
five times more restrictive. The more recent standard, developed by the Institute of Electrical and 
Electronics Engineers and approved as American National Standard ANSI/IEEE C95.1-2006, "Safety 
Levels with Respect to Human Exposure to Radio Frequency Electromagnetic Fields, 3 kHz to 
300 GHz," includes similar limits. These limits apply for continuous exposures from all sources and 
are intended to provide a prudent margin of safety for all persons, regardless of age, gender, size, or 
health. 

As shown in the table and chart below, separate limits apply for occupational and public exposure 
conditions, with the latter limits (in italics and/or dashed) up to five times more restrictive: 

Frequency 
Applicable 

Range 
(MHz) 

0.3 - 1.34 

1.34- 3.0 

3.0- 30 

30- 300

300- 1,500

1,500 - I 00,000 

1000 
100 

,-.... 

c;t' � ·- E 10 
:::: "' u 

06� 
o.. o E 

0.1 

0.1 

Electromagnetic Fields (f is frequency of emission in MHz) 
Electric Magnetic Equivalent Far-Field 

Field Strength Field Strength Power Density 
(V/m) (Alm) (mW/cm2

) 

614 614 1.63 1.63 100 100 
614 823.8/f 1.63 2.19/f 100 1801/ 

1842/ f 823.8/f 4.89/ f 2.19/f 900/ f2 1801/ 
61.4 27.5 0.163 0.0729 1.0 0.2 

3.54Vf 1.59{r Vf/106 .../j!238 f/300 f/1500 
137 61.4 0.364 0.163 5.0 1.0 

/ Occupational Exposure 
/ PCS 

----· 

-

Public Exposure 

10 100 
Frequency (MHz) 

Higher levels are allowed for short periods of time, such that total exposure levels averaged over six or 
thirty minutes, for occupational or public settings, respectively, do not exceed the limits, and higher 
levels also are allowed for exposures to small areas, such that the spatially averaged levels do not 
exceed the limits. However, neither of these allowances is incorporated in the conservative calculation 
formulas in the FCC Office of Engineering and Technology Bulletin No. 65 (August 1997) for 
projecting field levels. Hammett & Edison has built those formulas into a proprietary program that 
calculates, at each location on an arbitrary rectangular grid, the total expected power density from any 
number of individual radio sources. The program allows for the description of buildings and uneven 
terrain, ifrequired to obtain more accurate projections. 
HAMMETI & EDISON, INC. 
CONSULTNG ENGINEERS FCC Guidelines 
SAN fRANCISCO Figure 1 



. . . . ( 

RFRCALC TM Calculation Methodology 

Assessment by Calculation of Compliance with FCC Exposure Guidelines 

The U.S. Congress required (1996 Telecom Act) the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") to 
adopt a nationwide human exposure standard to ensure that its licensees do not, cumulatively, have a 
significant impact on the environment. The maximum permissible exposure limits adopted by the FCC 
(see Figure 1) apply for continuous exposures from all sources and are intended to provide a prudent 
margin of safety for all persons, regardless of age, gender, size, or health. Higher levels are allowed for 
short periods of time, such that total exposure levels averaged over six or thirty minutes, for 
occupational or public settings, respectively, do not exceed the limits. 

Near Field. 
Prediction methods have been developed for the near field zone of panel ( directional) and whip 
(omnidirectional) antennas, typical at wireless telecommunications base stations, as well as dish 
(aperture) antennas, typically used for microwave links. The antenna patterns are not fully formed in
the near field at these antennas, and the FCC Office of Engineering and Technology Bulletin No. 65 
(August 1997) gives suitable formulas for calculating power density within such zones. 

F 1 h. d . S 
180 O.lxPnct . mW; 2 or a pane or w ip antenna, power ensity = --x , m cm , 
8

8
w .1r x o x h 

dfi . . 
S 

O.lxl6xr,xP I W 2 an or an aperture antenna, maximum power density max = ,, 
nc , in m /cm 

Jt x h-
, 

where 8sw = half-power beamwidth of the antenna, in degrees, and 
Pnet net power input to the antenna, in watts, 

D = distance from antenna, in meters, 
h = aperture height of the antenna, in meters, and 
17 = aperture efficiency (unitless, typically 0.5-0.8). 

The factor ofO.l in the numerators converts to the desired units of power density. 

Far Field. 
OET-65 gives this formula for calculating power density in the far field of an individual RF source: 

S 
2.56 x 1.64 x 100 x RFF2 x ERP . mW; 2 power density = 

2 
, m cm , 

4x.1rxD 

where ERP = total ERP (all polarizations), in kilowatts, 
RFF = relative field factor at the direction to the actual point of calculation, and 

D = distance from the center of radiation to the point of calculation, in meters. 

The factor of 2.56 accounts for the increase in power density due to ground reflection, assuming a 
reflection coefficient of 1.6 (1.6 x 1.6 = 2.56). The factor of 1.64 is the gain of a half-wave dipole
relative to an isotropic radiator. The factor of 100 in the numerator converts to the desired units of 
power density. This formula has been built into a proprietary program that calculates, at each location 
on an arbitrary rectangular grid, the total expected power density from any number of individual 
radiation sources. The program also allows for the description of uneven terrain in the vicinity, to 
obtain more accurate projections. 

HAMMETT & EDISON, INC. 
CONSUL TING ENGINEERS 
SAN FRANCISCO 

Methodology 
Figure 2 



CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS 

SBMC §28.94.030 Uses Permitted in Specific Zones. (Excerpt) 

 The following uses may be permitted in the zones herein indicated upon the granting of a Conditional Use Permit, 
except that where another section of this Title specifically allows such use in a zone in conflict with this section, the 
provision of such other section shall apply and a Conditional Use Permit shall not be required… 

DD. Television, Radio and Cellular Telephone Antennas in all zones, subject to the following provisions:
1. Exemptions.  The following are exempt from the requirement of a Conditional Use Permit, and shall be

considered a permitted use in all zones: 
a. Repairs and maintenance of existing facilities, whether emergency or routine, or replacement of

transmitters, antennas, or other components of existing permitted facilities, provided there is little or no change in the 
visual appearance or any increase in radio frequency emission levels. 

b. Satellite Dish Antennas designed or used for the reception of television or other electronic
communications signal broadcast or relayed from an earth satellite. 

c. One or more cellular telephone antennas or paging antennas, provided that the Community
Development Director finds as follows: 

(1) Height:  The height of the antenna and supporting structure does not exceed Municipal
Code height limits set forth in Sec. 28.87.260, except where said antenna is being installed on an existing structure, in 
which event the height limit is measured from the highest point of the building and cannot exceed 15 feet above the 
building height. 

(2) Separation:  There is at least 100 feet between the base of the antenna support structure and
the nearest dwelling unit. 

(3) Access Control:  The applicant establishes that the general public will be excluded from an
area at least 50 feet in all directions from the antenna if antenna is not at least 10 feet off the ground.  If the antenna is 
at least 10 feet above grade, this distance may be reduced to 30 feet. 

(4) No Resource Impacts:  The project will have no significant impact on any biological or
archeological resources and will not generate additional traffic.  The applicant may be required to provide information 
to the Community Development Director regarding these matters. 

(5) No Visual Impacts:  The project has been reviewed by the Architectural Board of Review,
or the Historic Landmarks Commission if the property is located in the El Pueblo Viejo Landmark District or another 
landmark district or if the property contains a designated City Landmark.  The Board and Commission may take 
action regarding the location of the antenna(s) on the site, color and size of the proposed antennas so as to minimize 
any adverse visual impacts. 

d. A microcell, provided it has been reviewed by the Architectural Board of Review, or the Historic
Landmarks Commission if the property is located in the El Pueblo Viejo Landmark District or another landmark district or 
if the property or a structure thereon is a designated City Landmark.  The Board and Commission may take action 
regarding the location of the antenna(s) on the site, color and size of the proposed antennas so as to minimize any adverse 
visual impacts. 

ATTACHMENT 6



 556 rev. 9/30/15 

 



ABR ANTENNA SUBCOMMITTEE  
INTERIM GUIDELINES 

APRIL 18, 1997

1

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
DESIGN REVIEW GUIDELINES FOR 

WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITIES/ANTENNAS 

INTENT AND PURPOSE OF GUIDELINES: 

The intent of these guidelines is to maintain the aesthetic and historic nature of commercial district or 
neighborhoods with appropriate siting of cellular antennas and towers.  The purpose is also to require all 
wireless communication facilities to minimize visual impacts by providing for installations that are 
designed carefully, screened with landscaping or camouflaged to maintain the aesthetic quality of the 
surrounding area.  The following design standards shall apply: 

1. Antennas should be screened or hidden from the public view by the following methods: designed as
architectural elements, screened with enclosures or landscaping. Screening materials shall consist of
materials and colors consistent with the surrounding backdrop and/or textured to match the existing
structure.

2. Antennas mounted on architecturally significant structures or architecturally significant details of the
building should be covered with appropriate casings, which are manufactured to match existing
architectural features found on the building.

3. Where feasible, antennas can be placed directly above, below or incorporated with vertical design elements
of a building to help in camouflaging.

4. Equipment shelters or cabinets shall be screened from the public view by using landscaping, or materials
and colors consistent with the surrounding backdrop.

5. Equipment shelters or cabinets shall be consistent with the general character of the commercial district or
neighborhood.

6. Screening enclosures shall be allowed when the design is architecturally compatible with the building.

7. All exposed cables, conduits, surface mounted wires shall be concealed or painted out to match the
building.

8. If a facility is to be installed in or on a historic building or structure, additional measures shall be required
so as to not alter the historic significance of the building or structure.

9. The placement of antennas on buildings and other structures is encouraged and preferred over the
installation of towers or monopoles.  Where feasible, co-location of facilities, and minimum number of
antennas shall be evaluated to determine the proposed facility has been designed carefully.

10. Lighting of these facilities is not allowed.

E:\USERS\PLAN\WP\JLI\ANTENNAS\ANTENNA.GDL.doc

ATTACHMENT 7



Agenda Item No.13 

File Code No.  640.07 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North 

Milpas Street 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Deny the appeals of Jarrett Gorin and Pete Dal Bello and uphold the Planning 

Commission’s approval of a Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit; 
 
B. Direct staff to return to Council with Decision and Findings reflecting the outcome of 

the appeal. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The proposed project is a Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary 
(dispensary) in an existing commercial building at 118 North Milpas Street. Interior 
tenant improvements, minor exterior alterations, and landscaping are proposed. On 
January 20, 2016, the Staff Hearing Officer (SHO) approved a Storefront Collective 
Dispensary Permit, with conditions. The SHO approval was appealed to the Planning 
Commission by Pete Dal Bello. On March 17, 2016, the Planning Commission denied the 
appeal and upheld the SHO’s approval of the application.   
   
On March 28, 2016, Jarrett Gorin and Pete Dal Bello, respectively, filed separate appeals 
of the Planning Commission’s decision. The two appeal letters to City Council generally 
express similar concerns about crime and safety, parking, and public notification of 
hearings. The current appeals raise a new issue, questioning the adequacy of staff’s 
environmental determination regarding potential traffic and parking impacts. Based on 
the limited scope of work for the proposed commercial use in an existing commercial 
building, the staff environmental analyst determined that the project qualifies for an 
exemption under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  
 
Staff supports the application because it is consistent with zoning ordinance 
requirements established in Santa Barbara Municipal Code (SBMC) Chapter 28.80 and 
recommends that Council deny the appeals and uphold the Planning Commission’s 
approval of the Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit.   



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 
DISCUSSION: 
Background/SHO Review 
SBMC Chapter 28.80 (Medical Cannabis Dispensaries) was originally adopted in 2008 
and revised in 2010. The ordinance specifies that a total of three dispensaries are 
allowed in the City, and a maximum of one may be permitted within each of the five 
distinct areas specifically identified by street blocks. The subject property at 118 North 
Milpas Street is within the allowed locations for the Milpas Street area, defined as the 00 
to 400 blocks of North Milpas Street. In addition to meeting the location limitations, the 
SHO must review an operations plan for the dispensary and consider 12 criteria in 
determining whether to grant or deny a Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit (SBMC 
Sections 28.80.060 and 28.80.070). These 12 criteria, along with staff’s evaluation of 
each, are found in the SHO Staff Report (Attachment 2).   
 
The project location is a 4,449 square foot lot, zoned C-2 (Commercial), with an existing 
2,264 square foot building. The site has no onsite parking and is legal, non-conforming 
to the parking requirements. Under current zoning standards, a 2,264 square foot 
building would require nine onsite parking spaces for a general commercial use.   
 
The SHO approved the application on January 20, 2016, with added conditions of 
approval. A summary of the SHO conditions of approval that were added at the hearing 
include: 

• Elimination of an existing curb cut in front of the site to provide additional on-
street parking for one or two vehicles 

• Operating Plan shall be amended as follows: 
 A minimum of two security guards on duty during operating hours 
 Security camera monitoring shall have 24-hour remote live feed offsite 
 Explain that a member may obtain medical marijuana only after an initial waiting 

period 
 Provide a complete list of available products, merchandise, and services to City 

staff  
 Marketing concepts will be conducted at offsite locations 
 Clarify what rules of conduct will be displayed in the waiting room 
 Post inside the dispensary a State Law Compliance Warning 
 All patients and caregivers enter through the front doors outside of the fenced 

area 
 Dispensary Management shall place trash outside of the fenced area on pickup 

day 

• Patient Agreement Form shall be amended as follows: 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 3 

 

 Add zero tolerance policy regarding loitering and using cannabis or alcohol on 
the property. In the event of an infraction, membership shall be terminated 

 Add that membership is limited to only one collective within the City 

• Interior Signage with rules, state law, restrictions regarding minors, and hours shall 
be approved by City staff 

The full text of the conditions appears in SHO Resolution 006-16 and in Planning 
Commission Resolution 010-16 (Attachment 5).   
Planning Commission Review of SHO Appeal 
On January 28, 2016, Mr. Dal Bello filed an appeal of the SHO’s approval, citing 
concerns with allowing a marijuana dispensary in this neighborhood, crime and safety in 
the area, impacts to on-street parking, and lack of adequate notification of hearings. On 
March 14, 2016, three days prior to the hearing, Mr. Dal Bello submitted new 
information to support his appeal, including an internet article presenting data showing 
that marijuana dispensaries have very high vehicle trip generation rates. Transportation 
Planning staff determined that the data were not comparable to the proposed project 
because the data were limited in scope and were collected in Colorado at locations that 
dispense marijuana for recreational use and where it is legal to purchase without a 
physician’s recommendation. 
 
The Planning Commissioners visited the site on March 15, 2016, at which time the 
applicant, Ryan Howe, explained the proposed configuration of the floor plan and site 
plan, and security features. At the hearing on March 17, 2016, the Planning 
Commission heard Mr. Dal Bello’s appeal issues and comments from various members 
of the public in support of the appeal and evaluated the application as approved by the 
SHO with conditions of approval (Attachment 6, Planning Commission Minutes). The 
application consists of the following components: 
   

• the locational limitations requiring a visible, storefront location within an allowed 
area of the City; 

• the operations plan that describes and sets forth rules for the operational and 
management activities of the dispensary, such as admitting members, informing 
and controlling member conduct, and dispensing medical cannabis;  

• proposed improvements to the building, which involve interior floor plan changes 
to create separate waiting and dispensing areas and provide management office 
spaces and secure storage; 

• exterior site alterations such as a fence to secure the property, outdoor 
courtyard, trash enclosure, security cameras, and landscape plan; and 

• public right-of-way improvement to replace the existing driveway apron with a 
curb.   

The Planning Commission found that the application complies with the locational 
limitations and the criteria for permit issuance denied the appeal, and approved the 
application with no changes or additions to the SHO’s conditions of approval.     



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 4 

 

Council Appeal Issues  
On March 28, 2016, the City received two appeals of the Planning Commission’s 
decision of March 17, 2016. Jarrett Gorin submitted an appeal on behalf of Natasha 
Todorovic and Santos Guzman. Pete Dal Bello submitted an appeal that expresses 
concerns similar to those in his appeal to the Planning Commission. The discussion that 
follows is organized by appeal issue areas.     
 
Negative Impacts to Neighborhood Safety 
Mr. Dal Bello provided a report listing police calls for service at the vicinity of the subject 
property to demonstrate that this location has crime issues even without an operating 
dispensary. Attached to his appeal letter is a report of 911 calls dated January 25, 2008 
to January 21, 2015 (Attachment 1). None of these calls were related to the current 
dispensary applicant or new property owner (since May 28, 2015), and a number of the 
calls were unfounded or cancelled. In order to issue a dispensary permit, consideration 
must be given to Criterion 2 of SBMC Section 28.87.070.B, that the proposed location is 
not identified by the City Chief of Police as an area of increased or high crime activity. 
The City Police Department confirmed that 118 North Milpas Street is not an area of 
increased or high crime activity, and that the report submitted by Mr. Dal Bello is 
evidence of this. Staff considers the proposed operations and security plans to be 
responsive to safety concerns and consistent with Criteria 7, 8, and 9 as described in 
the SHO Staff Report (Attachment 2). 
 
Management Members of Collective 
Mr. Dal Bello expresses concern about who may be participating in the management of 
the proposed dispensary and their intentions to operate for profit. The applicant, Ryan 
Howe, is the sole management member identified in the application submitted to the 
City and has satisfied the Filing Requirements of SBMC Section 28.80.060.F. Staff has 
no confirmed knowledge or information to the contrary beyond receiving an anonymous 
letter the day before the Planning Commission appeal hearing (see attachment to Mr. 
Dal Bello’s appeal letter, Attachment 1). 
 
Inadequate Parking 
City archive records show that the project site has never had any permitted onsite 
parking. The existing site contains a 2,264 square foot, one-story commercial building, 
and previously had a delivery driveway for a food cooperative, as noted on plans dated 
1978. Prior tenants may have parked on the site; however, the configuration of the site 
makes onsite parking infeasible, as commercial parking is not allowed to back out onto 
Milpas Street, and there is not enough space between the building and property line to 
turn a vehicle around. A 2015 building permit for repairs and accessibility improvements 
to the building required installation of a landscaping planter to block driveway access to 
prevent vehicles from entering and therefore having to back out.   
Both appellants are concerned that, by not providing any onsite parking, this operation 
will have negative impacts to the availability of surrounding on-street parking for 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 5 

 

businesses and residents. Similar concerns were expressed by 12 of the 23 public 
comments received for the SHO hearing.   
The Medical Cannabis Dispensary ordinance (SBMC §28.80.080.D.6) specifically states 
that “Storefront Collective Dispensaries shall be considered a commercial use relative to 
the parking requirements imposed by Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section (SBMC 
§28.90.100.I).” The requirement under this section is one (1) parking space per 250 
square feet of net floor area of the building. This would be the same required number of 
parking spaces for any office or commercial use. 
The previous retail uses onsite, and the proposed dispensary use of this building, fall 
under the commercial parking requirement of one (1) parking space per 250 square feet 
of net floor area. Previous uses and the proposed use are allowed commercial uses in 
the C-2 Zone. Since both prior and proposed uses are commercial, provision SBMC 
§28.90.001.N in the parking ordinance regarding change of use does not apply. The 
current building, if built today, would require nine parking spaces; however, this property 
is legal, nonconforming with no onsite parking. The parking ordinance provides that 
properties that are nonconforming to the required number of parking spaces may 
continue to be used, except that additional parking must be provided if the building 
square footage is increased, or the use of the building is changed to a use that requires 
more parking (SBMC §28.90.001.B). This application does not involve new square 
footage or a change in use that requires more parking; therefore, no new parking is 
required. Furthermore, any allowed commercial use that occupies this building would 
have the same parking situation. There is also a requirement to provide parking for 
bicycles, and for this site the requirement is one (1) bicycle space. The site has space to 
accommodate bicycle parking, and the proposal includes bicycle racks for four bicycles. 
During the application review process, the applicant consulted with staff about closing 
the existing driveway in front of his property in order to provide more on-street parking. 
Because of the expense, he did not include this work in his proposal but said he would 
consider doing it once the dispensary was operating. The elimination of the curb cut and 
installation of new curb would result in the addition of one or two on-street public 
parking spaces, depending upon vehicle size and driver behavior. The SHO made 
completion of this work with a Public Works permit a condition of approval, to which the 
applicant agreed.  
Criterion 8 of SBMC §28.80.070.B. refers to controlling patrons’ conduct with regard to 
traffic control problems or interference of the operation of another business. Criterion 9 
refers to having no adverse effect, not overly burdening a specific neighborhood, and 
not resulting in nuisance activities, including illegal parking. Staff believes that Criteria 8 
and 9 can be satisfied because the proposed use will have a limited number of 
members who must be “qualified patients” or “primary caregivers”; trips to the site will 
be spread out throughout the day, consistent with other commercial retail uses that 
could occupy the space; and shared public parking for all commercial uses along the 
Milpas Street corridor continues to exist. In addition, the project will provide one or two 
new on-street public parking spaces for use by all businesses in this area.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 6 

 

Inadequate Environmental Review and Traffic Control Problems 
Based on the limited scope of work and the small size of the building, staff determined 
that the project qualifies for a Categorical Exemption from further environmental review 
under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15301(a) for 
minor alterations to existing facilities. The project involves a commercial tenant 
improvement with minor interior and exterior alterations to the existing commercial 
building and minor site improvements and landscaping at the site, and involves no 
expansion of use.   
The appellants contest the adequacy of staff’s environmental review and use of a 
Categorical Exemption from further CEQA review, asserting that: (1) an Initial Study and 
technical traffic study by a qualified traffic engineer is needed; (2) the proposed 
dispensary use represents an expansion of use and therefore does not qualify under the 
exemption category’s criteria for “negligible or no expansion of use” (Guidelines 
§15301); and (3) an exception to use of the categorical exemption applies per CEQA 
Guidelines §15300.2 due to the reasonable possibility of a significant traffic effect due to 
unusual circumstances.  
The staff CEQA exemption determination is based on a preliminary review for 
exemption process as identified in CEQA Guidelines §15061. The traffic analysis 
concluding no significant impact that supports the CEQA exemption determination was 
conducted by the City’s Transportation Division (described in further detail below). The 
traffic analysis used City analytic procedures and criteria, and a further traffic study by a 
traffic consultant is not required for this project. 
The use of Categorical Exemption §15301 is not precluded by an exception under 
§15300.2.c as described by Mr. Gorin in his appeal letter because the project does not 
involve the “reasonable possibility of a significant environmental effect due to unusual 
circumstances.” The fact that this property, which was developed in the 1940s, has no 
onsite parking is not an unusual circumstance in the City. The City frequently processes 
applications for tenant improvements for buildings built with less than the required 
parking. The first parking ordinance to require parking for all commercial and industrial 
uses in the City was adopted in 1957. Many older commercial properties in the City 
have fewer onsite parking spaces than required under current requirements. The project 
use is a retail use for purposes of environmental impact evaluation, and the site, 
neighborhood, and proposed use do not constitute an unusual circumstance that 
triggers the exception to the exemption. 
The use of the existing commercial property by another commercial tenant will not have 
a significant environmental effect. Transportation staff consider medical marijuana 
collective dispensaries to be a retail land use for purposes of traffic analysis.  
Because the previous use was also retail and there is no proposed expansion of the 
building, the trip generation was projected to be the same as the previous use (5 AM 
peak hour trips and 7 PM peak hour trips). Even if the use of the building was proposed 
to change from retail to the highest possible trip-generating uses for this area based on 
the City Traffic Model (commercial services during the AM peak and restaurant use 
during the PM peak), the net increase in traffic would be 12 AM peak trips and 15 PM 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 7 

 

peak trips. Distributing those trips to the street network would not use one percent or 
more of the intersection capacity at any of the 27 intersections anticipated to be 
impacted in 2030. Therefore, even assuming a worst-case scenario and converting to 
the highest trip-generating use for this area would not result in a project specific traffic 
impact. 
The appellants reference trip generation data from four different recreational marijuana 
dispensaries in the suburban Denver, Colorado area. (Trips were counted for each of 
the four recreational dispensaries in September 2015. The average AM peak hour trip 
generation rates for the four dispensaries ranged from 8-75 trips per thousand square 
feet, and the average PM peak hour trip generation rate ranged from 11-125 trips per 
thousand square feet.) Two of the four locations studied were reported to have 
substantially higher trip generation than the others and substantially higher rates than 
any trip generation rates found within the City of Santa Barbara Traffic Model. Trip 
generation for recreational marijuana dispensaries in the suburban Denver area is not 
comparable to trip generation for medical marijuana collective dispensaries in the City. 
The proposed dispensary would have a limited number of patrons qualified for receiving 
medical marijuana; limited traffic generation, with trip-generating characteristics similar 
to other retail uses; and traffic spread through the day and not generating substantial 
peak-hour employee or customer traffic. 
Permitted dispensaries similar to the proposed dispensary previously operated in the 
City from about 2008 to 2011. City staff are unaware of any traffic-related or parking-
related issues or complaints from operations of the previous permitted dispensaries.   
Based on the above analysis, staff has determined that the project qualifies for a 
Categorical Exemption under CEQA Guidelines §15301 for the operation and minor 
alteration of existing facilities.  
The project also qualifies for a CEQA exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 
15183, for projects consistent with the General Plan and zoning. The project is within 
the scope of analysis for the General Plan Environmental Impact Report (EIR), which 
evaluated the potential environmental effects from citywide development to the year 
2030. The traffic analysis included baseline trips associated with an occupied retail use 
on the project site. The traffic effects of future growth considered new square footage 
and new residential units and also included assumptions to recognize that, over time, 
existing businesses turn over. The General Plan allows for retail uses along this corridor 
as well as the adaptive reuse of buildings, which the project is proposing. The City 
Council environmental findings for adoption of the 2011 General Plan identified 
significant cumulative traffic impacts of citywide growth and determined the traffic 
impacts acceptable in light of overriding considerations of Plan benefits. These Council 
findings remain applicable for this project.   
A CEQA determination finding that the project qualifies for a categorical exemption from 
further CEQA review under CEQA Guidelines §15301 and a statutory exemption under 
Guidelines §15183 is identified in the attached Certificate of Determination for the 
project.  



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 8 

 

Mr. Gorin’s letter also asserts that required findings cannot be made regarding Criterion 
8 regarding “traffic control problems.” Staff’s analysis indicates that the proposed project 
is not expected to result in traffic control problems.  
 
Failure to Provide Public Notice 
Mr. Dal Bello mentions that his family owns two properties within 300 feet of the project 
site but did not receive notices of public hearings. Staff confirmed that proper 
notification was provided in accordance with the Brown Act, and with City requirements 
in SBMC §28.87.380 (Notice of Hearing), and consistent with Government Code 
Sections 65090 and 65091. The application was reviewed during public hearings at the 
Architectural Board of Review (ABR) Consent Agenda, the SHO, and the Planning 
Commission. Ten days prior to each of these hearings, notices were mailed to owners 
of property within 300 feet of the project site and to interested parties, and a notification 
sign was posted at the site. Five to six days prior to the ABR and SHO hearings, 
meeting agendas were posted at 630 Garden Street and on the City website. Seven 
days prior to the Planning Commission hearing, the meeting agenda was posted at City 
Hall and on the City website.  Twelve days prior to the SHO hearing, and 13 days prior 
to the Planning Commission hearing, legal ads appeared in the Santa Barbara News-
Press.   
The mailing lists in the City’s project file show that notices were properly sent to the two 
Dal Bello-owned properties prior to the ABR, SHO, and Planning Commission hearings. 
Mr. Dal Bello was also added to the mailing list as an interested party for the SHO 
hearing as a result of making public comment at the ABR hearing. Notices of all three 
hearings were also mailed to the Milpas Community Association, and notices of SHO 
and Planning Commission hearings were mailed to the City’s Neighborhood Advisory 
Council. Mailed notification to neighboring tenants is not required or City policy; 
however, the City does provide an “additional noticing method” via a large yellow 
“Notice of Development” sign on the project site. This sign has been posted 
continuously at the front of the site and was in place at least ten days prior to the ABR, 
SHO, and Planning Commission hearings.   
 
Non-Compliance with Criterion 9 (Adverse Effects to Neighborhood) 
Criterion 9 is one of the 12 criteria for consideration in determining whether to grant or 
deny a Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit. Relative to the other criteria, Criterion 9 
is general in nature:  

“That the Storefront Collective Dispensary is likely to have no potentially adverse 
effect on the health, peace, or safety of persons living or working in the 
surrounding area, overly burden a specific neighborhood, or contribute to a public 
nuisance, and that the Dispensary will generally not result in repeated nuisance 
activities including disturbances of the peace, illegal drug activity, marijuana use 
in public, harassment of passerby, excessive littering, excessive loitering, illegal 
parking, excessive loud noises, especially late at night or early in the morning 
hours, lewd conduct, or police detentions or arrests.” 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 9 

 

Mr. Gorin’s letter expresses concerns that the proposed dispensary will generate traffic 
and associated parking demand at a higher rate than the former stereo store/smoke 
shop tenant in the building. Further, he asserts that a substantial increase in parking 
demand in this already heavily congested area would have an adverse effect, and no 
basis is provided to establish how the Planning Commission determined otherwise. 
Criterion 9 asks the decision-maker to determine if the proposed dispensary is likely to 
have adverse effects. Staff’s opinion is that the application’s proposed security 
measures are robust, and the controls on members described in the SHO Staff Report 
(Attachments 2 and 9), along with the additional conditions of approval in the Planning 
Commission resolution (Attachment 6) indicate that the dispensary would likely have no 
adverse effects on the health, peace, or safety of persons living or working in the 
surrounding area, overly burden a specific neighborhood, or contribute to a public 
nuisance. 
It should be noted that the dispensary ordinance provides for suspension or revocation 
of issued permits (SBMC §28.80.120.C) if any ordinance requirements have been 
violated. The ordinance also provides for annual review of operating dispensaries for full 
compliance with operational and recordkeeping requirements (SBMC §28.80.120.B). 
Since no dispensaries have been permitted and operational under these provisions 
since the ordinance was amended in 2010, staff has not yet conducted such an annual 
review. However, staff has prepared a checklist of all the provisions in the ordinance to 
be reviewed during an inspection and is proposing a fee in the Fiscal Year 2017 Fee 
Resolution to reimburse the City for the review. If noncompliance is found, staff may 
initiate suspension or revocation of the permit at a hearing by the Staff Hearing Officer. 
Conclusion 
It is staff’s position that the Planning Commission gave appropriate consideration to the 
appeal issues, the locational requirements, and the 12 criteria for issuance of a permit 
(Attachment 9), and that appropriate environmental review was completed. Staff 
recommends that Council deny the appeals and uphold the Planning Commission’s 
approval of the Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit with the findings and conditions of 
approval in Planning Commission Resolution 010-16. 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 10 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Appeal Letters from Pete Dal Bello dated March 27, 2016 and Jarrett Gorin dated 

March 28, 2016 
2. Staff Hearing Officer Staff Report dated January 13, 2016, without attachments 
3. Planning Commission Staff Report dated March 10, 2016, without attachments 
4. Public Comment to Planning Commission March 17, 2016 
5. Planning Commission Resolution No. 010-16 
6. Planning Commission Minutes of March 17, 2016 
7. Applicant’s Executive Summary and Operating Plan 
8. Reduced copies of floor and security plans 
9. SBMC Sections 28.80.050 and 28.80.070 (Locational Limitations and Criteria for 

Issuance) 
 
NOTE:  The approved plans been placed in the Mayor and Council’s Office and are 
available for public review in the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
PREPARED BY: Tony Boughman, Assistant Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 1

































































































STAFF HEARING OFFICER 
STAFF REPORT 

REPORT DATE: January 13, 2016 

AGENDA DATE: January 20, 2016 

PROJECT ADDRESS: 118 North Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
“The Canopy” 

TO: Susan Reardon, Senior Planner, Staff Hearing Officer 

FROM: Planning Division, (805) 564-5470 
Beatriz Gularte, Senior Planner 
Tony Boughman, Assistant Planner 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION
The project consists of a proposal for a Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary
Permit.  The dispensary would be located in an existing 2,264 square foot commercial
building.  Interior and exterior improvements are proposed.

II. REQUIRED APPLICATIONS
The discretionary application required for this project is a Medical Marijuana Storefront
Collective Dispensary Permit (SBMC §28.80.030).

III. RECOMMENDATION
If approved as proposed, the project would conform to the City’s Zoning Ordinance.  Therefore,
staff recommends that the Staff Hearing Officer approve the project, making the findings outlined
in Section VII of this report, and subject to the conditions of approval in Exhibit A.

ATTACHMENT 2



Staff Hearing Officer Staff Report 
118 North Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
January 13, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 
Vicinity Map - 118 North Milpas Street 

 
 
IV. SITE INFORMATION

Applicant:  Ryan Howe 
Property Owner: Merry Milpas LLC 
Site Information 
Parcel Number: 017-091-016 Lot Area: 4,449 sq. ft. 
General Plan: Commercial/High Density 
Residential Zoning: C-2, Commercial 

Existing Use: Vacant commercial building Topography: Flat 
Adjacent Land Uses 

North – Residential                                           East – Residential 
South – Residential                                           West – Residential and Commercial 



Staff Hearing Officer Staff Report 
118 North Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
January 13, 2016 
Page 3 
 
V. ZONING ORDINANCE CONSISTENCY 

Medical Cannabis Dispensaries are governed by Chapter 28.80 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code (SBMC).  The following discussion provides an analysis of the proposed 
project’s consistency with that Chapter. 

A. STOREFRONT COLLECTIVE DISPENSARY LIMITATIONS  

The proposed dispensary complies with the location limitations in SBMC §28.80.050.  The parcel 
is commercially zoned and located in the allowed 00 to 400 blocks of North Milpas Street.  The 
one-story commercial building is set back approximately five feet behind the sidewalk and 
provides good visibility of the entrance, and visibility into and out of the dispensary through the 
large front windows.  A separate accessible entrance on the south side of the building is set back 
approximately 22 feet and also has good visibility.  The location is not within 1,000 feet of 
another dispensary, it would be the only dispensary in the Milpas Street area, and it would not 
result in more than three permitted dispensaries in the City.   

B. ISSUANCE CRITERIA  

The Zoning Ordinance requires that the Staff Hearing Officer consider the following issuance 
criteria in determining whether to grant or deny a Storefront Collective Dispensary permit 
(SBMC §28.80.070.B): 
 
1. That the Collective Dispensary permit and the operation of the proposed Dispensary will be 
consistent with the intent of the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 and the SB 420 Statutes for 
providing medical marijuana to qualified patients and primary caregivers, and with the 
provisions of this Chapter and the Municipal Code, including the application submittal and 
operating requirements herein. 
 
The applicant states in his introduction letter that the proposed Storefront Collective Dispensary, 
“The Canopy”, will operate under the laws of the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 (Proposition 
215) and Senate Bill 420 (Exhibit B, page 5).  The operations plan, security plans, and signed 
affidavits indicate compliance with the dispensary ordinance and Municipal Code. 
 
2. That the proposed location of the Storefront Collective Dispensary is not identified by the City 
Chief of Police as an area of increased or high crime activity. 
 
The location is not identified by the City Police Department as an area of increased or high crime 
activity. 
 
3. For those applicants who have operated other Storefront Collective Dispensaries within the 
City, that there have not been significant numbers of calls for police service, crimes or arrests in 
the area of the applicant’s former location. 
 
The applicant has not operated any other Storefront Collective Dispensaries in the City. 
 
4. That issuance of a Collective Dispensary permit for the Collective Dispensary size requested 
is appropriate to meet needs of the community for access to medical marijuana. 



Staff Hearing Officer Staff Report 
118 North Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
January 13, 2016 
Page 4 
 

 
The proposed interior tenant improvements in the existing 2,264 square foot one-story 
commercial building will create separate areas for waiting, dispensing, office, and secured 
storage (Exhibit B pages 8 & 29).  The proposed size is appropriate to safely and efficiently 
operate a dispensary to meet the needs of the community. 
 
5. That issuance of the Collective Dispensary permit would serve needs of City residents within 
a proximity to this location. 
 
The dispensary would be located in the Milpas neighborhood and would be centrally located 
among the neighborhoods on the east side of the City.  Of the five allowed dispensary location 
areas within the City, the Milpas Street area is the only one located on the east side of the City.  
The location on the Milpas Street thoroughfare would provide easy access, and is reasonably 
close to Metropolitan Transit District (MTD) bus stops. 
 
6. That the location is not prohibited by the provisions of this Chapter or any local or state law, 
statute, rule, or regulation, and no significant nuisance issues or problems are likely or 
anticipated, and that compliance with other applicable requirements of the City’s Zoning 
Ordinance will be accomplished. 
 
The proposed location is not prohibited, and it complies with the location limitations in SBMC 
§28.80.050.  The parcel is commercially zoned and located in the area of Milpas Street where 
dispensaries are allowed.  The commercial building has good public visibility and no significant 
nuisance issues or problems are likely or anticipated with regard to this location. 
 
7. That the Dispensary’s Operations Plan, its site plan, its floor plan, the proposed hours of 
operation, and a security plan have incorporated features necessary to assist in reducing 
potential crime-related problems and as specified in the operating requirements section. These 
features may include, but are not limited to, security on-site; procedure for allowing entry; 
openness to surveillance and control of the premises; the perimeter, and surrounding properties; 
reduction of opportunities for congregating and obstructing public ways and neighboring 
property; illumination of exterior areas; and limiting furnishings and features that encourage 
loitering and nuisance behavior. 
 
The application proposes physical improvements shown on the site plan consisting of security 
cameras, and a see-through fence to control the exterior of the property.  The floor plan is 
configured to provide a large waiting area to reduce the chance of loitering outside, high quality 
doors and locks, a secure wall and controlled access between the waiting and dispensing areas, 
and provides a built-in vault for secure storage.  The operations plan gives detailed descriptions 
of the means by which the proposed operation will comply with requirements (Exhibit B, pages 
9 & 19).  Members are informed, and must sign a membership agreement which lists 
requirements and prohibitions (Exhibit B, page 47).  The security plan proposes two security 
guards on site during business hours, a registered alarm system (required by ordinance), and 
interior and exterior security cameras with recordings secured in the vault (Exhibit B, page 31). 
 



Staff Hearing Officer Staff Report 
118 North Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
January 13, 2016 
Page 5 
 

8. That all reasonable measures have been incorporated into the Dispensary security plan or 
consistently taken to successfully control the establishment’s patrons’ conduct resulting in 
disturbances, vandalism, crowd control inside or outside the premises, traffic control problems, 
marijuana use in public, or creation of a public or private nuisance, or interference of the 
operation of another business. 
 
Two security guards are proposed to be on site during business hours.  Security guards’ 
responsibilities will include screening new and prospective members, monitoring and controlling 
the conduct of members and removal of graffiti.  The application proposes a “zero tolerance” 
clause in the membership agreement regarding members and employees loitering and/or using 
cannabis within 200 feet of the dispensary.  This form includes items regarding courteous 
behavior, being respectful to neighboring businesses and residences, not littering or loitering, and 
not medicating in or around the premises.  Staff expects to review an updated membership 
agreement form including the zero tolerance clause, and the proposed onsite signage addressing 
member behavior (Exhibit B, pages 10, 31 & 47).    
 
9. That the Storefront Collective Dispensary is likely to have no potentially adverse effect on the 
health, peace, or safety of persons living or working in the surrounding area, overly burden a 
specific neighborhood, or contribute to a public nuisance, and that the Dispensary will generally 
not result in repeated nuisance activities including disturbances of the peace, illegal drug 
activity, marijuana use in public, harassment of passerby, excessive littering, excessive loitering, 
illegal parking, excessive loud noises, especially late at night or early in the morning hours, lewd 
conduct, or police detentions or arrests. 
 
The proposed security plan and operations plan should avoid nuisance behavior and adverse 
effects on health, peace, and safety of persons in the surrounding area.  Adequate lighting exists, 
and security cameras would be inside and outside the building.  One of the two security guards 
would patrol the exterior of the premises at least once per hour, and ensure the street and sidewalk 
are free of loitering, and that other businesses are not negatively affected.  The patrolling guard 
would watch for alcohol or cannabis use, address nuisance issues, pick up litter, and report 
graffiti.  Hours of operation are limited to 8 AM to 6 PM, Monday through Saturday.  Therefore, 
the dispensary operation is not likely to have adverse effects on the health, peace, or safety of 
persons living or working in the surrounding area; overly burden a specific neighborhood; or 
contribute to a public nuisance (Exhibit B, pages 11 & 31).  
 
10. That any provision of the Municipal Code or condition imposed by a City-issued permit, or 
any provision of any other local or state law, regulation, or order, or any condition imposed by 
permits issued in compliance with those laws, will not be violated. 
 
No violations of municipal code provisions, conditions of any City-issued permits, or any other 
local or state law, regulation or order, or any condition imposed by permits issued in compliance 
with any local or state law have been identified.  The Staff Hearing Officer has the authority to 
suspend or revoke the Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit pursuant to SBMC Section 
28.80.120 if it appears to that Officer that the Dispensary permittee has violated any of the 
requirements of Chapter 28.80, or the dispensary is being operated in a manner which violates 



Staff Hearing Officer Staff Report 
118 North Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
January 13, 2016 
Page 6 
 

the operational requirements or operational plan required by the Dispensary Ordinance, or it is 
operated in a manner which conflicts with state law. 
 
11. That the Applicant has not made a false statement of material fact or has omitted to state a 
material fact in the application for a permit. 
 
The applicant, Ryan Howe, signed a statement that all information in the application is true.  Staff 
has not discovered any false statements or omissions of material facts in the application materials. 
 
12. That the Applicant has not engaged in unlawful, fraudulent, unfair, or deceptive business 
acts or practices with respect to the operation of another business within the City. 
 
The applicant passed the required background check.  The applicant included a signed statement 
in his application that he has not engaged in unlawful, fraudulent, unfair, or deceptive business 
acts or practices with respect to the operation of another business within the City. 

PARKING  

The dispensary ordinance specifies that a dispensary shall be considered a commercial use 
relative to the parking requirement (SBMC §28.80.080.D.6).  This location has never had any 
onsite parking, and is therefore legal, non-conforming to the commercial parking requirement to 
provide one space per 250 square feet of floor area (SBMC §28.90.100.I).  The application 
proposes four bicycle parking spaces on site.  The conforming parking requirement would be 
nine onsite vehicle spaces and one bicycle space.  The configuration of the site makes onsite 
parking infeasible, as commercial parking is not allowed to back out onto Milpas Street and there 
is not enough space to turn a vehicle around on the site.  The applicant anticipates using on street 
parking for employees and members.  Because additional parking is not a zoning requirement, 
nor is it a criterion for the issuance of a Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit, staff does not 
consider parking to be a significant issue.  Once the dispensary is open and operating, the 
applicant may request that Transportation Engineering staff conduct an on-street parking 
occupancy study to determine if a 15 minute green curb zone in front of the building would be 
beneficial for the project.  Many of the dispensary members are anticipated to be disabled; 
however, the City is moving away from adding on-street blue zones for the disabled for private 
residences or businesses.   
 

VI. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
Staff has determined that the project qualifies for a Categorical Exemption from further 
environmental review under Section 15301(a) (Existing Facilities) of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines.  The project involves interior and exterior tenant 
improvements in an existing commercial building, and landscaping improvements.   

 

 

 

 



Staff Hearing Officer Staff Report 
118 North Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
January 13, 2016 
Page 7 
 
VII. FINDINGS 

The Staff Hearing Officer finds the following:  
STOREFRONT COLLECTIVE DISPENSARY PERMIT (SBMC §28.80.070)  

The application complies with the location criteria of SBMC §28.80.050, as outlined in Section 
V.A of the staff report, and with the criteria for issuance of a Storefront Collective Dispensary 
permit set forth in SBMC §28.80.070.B, as explained in Section V.B of the Staff Report and the 
applicant’s submittal. 

Exhibits: 

A. Conditions of Approval 
B. Application, Executive Summary, and Operating Plan  
C. Project Plans – distributed separately 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT 

REPORT DATE: March 10, 2016 

AGENDA DATE: March 17, 2016 

PROJECT ADDRESS: 118 North Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
“The Canopy” 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Planning Division, (805) 564-5470, extension 4539 
Beatriz Gularte, Senior Planner 
Tony Boughman, Assistant Planner 

I. PURPOSE OF HEARING
The purpose of this hearing is for the Planning Commission to consider the appeal of the Staff
Hearing Officer (SHO) approval on January 20, 2016 of a Medical Marijuana Storefront
Collective Dispensary Permit at 118 North Milpas Street.

II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION
The project approved by the SHO consists of a proposal for a Medical Marijuana Storefront
Collective Dispensary Permit.  The dispensary would be located in an existing 2,264 square foot
commercial building.  Interior and exterior improvements are proposed.

The discretionary application required for this project is a Medical Marijuana Storefront
Collective Dispensary Permit (SBMC §28.80.030).

The appellant, Pete Dal Bello, requests that the Planning Commission deny the project (refer to
Exhibit A, Appellant’s Letter).

III. RECOMMENDATION
That the Planning Commission consider whether the application meets the twelve criteria for
issuance of a Storefront Collective Dispensary permit in SBMC §28.80.070.B in determining
whether to affirm, reverse, or modify the decision of the SHO.  Please refer to the SHO staff
report (Exhibit B) for staff’s analysis of the application and the complete list of criteria for
issuance which the Planning Commission must consider in deciding on the appeal.

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission denies the appeal and approves the Storefront
Collective Dispensary Permit, including the Conditions of Approval as shown in SHO Resolution
006-16 (Exhibit C).

ATTACHMENT 3



Planning Commission Staff Report 
118 N. Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
March 10, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 
Vicinity Map - 118 North Milpas Street 

 
IV.  SITE INFORMATION 

Applicant:  Ryan Howe 
Property Owner: Merry Milpas LLC 
Site Information 
Parcel Number: 017-091-016 Lot Area: 4,449 sq. ft. 
General Plan: Commercial/High Density 
Residential Zoning: C-2, Commercial 

Existing Use: Vacant commercial building Topography: Flat 
Adjacent Land Uses 

North – Residential                                           East – Residential 
South – Residential                                           West – Residential and Commercial 

V. STAFF HEARING OFFICER DECISION 
On January 20, 2016, the SHO approved the request for a Medical Marijuana Storefront 
Collective Dispensary permit.  The application was found to meet the location criteria, and the 
criteria for issuance of a permit (Exhibit D).  The SHO imposed additional conditions of approval 
on the project at the hearing.   

 The following is a summary of SHO Conditions of Approval that were added at the hearing: 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
118 N. Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
March 10, 2016 
Page 3 
 

A. Elimination of Curb Cut to provide additional on-street parking   
B. Operating Plan shall be amended as follows: 

1. A minimum of two security guards on duty during operating hours 

2. Security camera monitoring shall have 24 hour remote live feed offsite 

3. Explain that a member may obtain medical marijuana only after an initial waiting 
period 

4. A complete list of available products, merchandise, and services to City staff  

5. Marketing concepts will be conducted at offsite locations 

6. Clarify what rules of conduct will be displayed in the waiting room 

7. Post inside the dispensary a State Law Compliance Warning 

8. All patients and caregivers enter through the front doors outside of the fenced area 

9. Dispensary Management shall place trash outside of the fenced area on pickup 
day 

C. Patient Agreement Form shall be amended as follows: 

1. Add zero tolerance policy regarding loitering and using cannabis or alcohol on 
the property.  In the event of infraction, membership shall be terminated 

2. Add that membership is limited to only one collective within the City 

D. Interior Signage with rules, state law, minors, and hours shall be approved by City staff 

The full text of the conditions of approval in SHO Resolution 006-16 is shown in Exhibit C. 

VI. APPEAL ISSUES 
Mr. Dal Bello’s appeal letter provides a narrative of neighborhood history, relates events that 
occurred during the application process, and expresses concerns about:  

• Allowing a medical marijuana dispensary in this neighborhood;  

• Crime and safety in the area;  

• Impacts to on-street parking; and 

• Notification of the SHO hearing.   
Below is staff’s discussion of the appellant’s concerns and how those concerns relate to criteria 
to be considered in issuing a Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit.   

A. Dispensary in Milpas Area 
The appellant spoke in opposition to having a dispensary at this location.  Concerns were 
expressed by 21 of the 23 members of the public who spoke and/or submitted written comments 
that a dispensary should not be allowed in the Milpas area (Exhibit E).  As described in the SHO 
staff report and SHO hearing, the application complies with the “Limitations on the Permitted 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
118 N. Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
March 10, 2016 
Page 4 
 

Location of a Storefront Collective Dispensary” in SBMC §28.80.050.  In brief, these limitations 
are:  

• Parcel is zoned for commercial use and located on the 00 to 400 blocks of North 
Milpas Street;  

• Visible, ground floor storefront location with good public views of the entrance and 
windows;  

• Not within 1000 feet of another dispensary;  
• No other Storefront Collective Dispensaries in the Milpas area; and  
• No more than three Collective Dispensary permits in the City. 

The ordinance, SBMC Chapter 28.80, which allows this use at this location was adopted by the 
City Council on March 25, 2008 and a revised ordinance was adopted by the City Council on 
June 29, 2010.  The revised ordinance specifies the five areas of the City where a dispensary 
could be allowed.  How were the 00 to 400 blocks of N. Milpas selected as an allowed area for a 
dispensary?  The history of the ordinance shows that locational limitations for dispensaries had 
much review during the drafting process, and throughout reviews at public hearings by the 
Planning Commission, Ordinance Committee, and adoption by the City Council.  Appropriate 
zoning was determined to be the commercial zones, particularly the General Commercial (C-2) 
zone.  Within the City’s commercial zones, the downtown area, as well as areas in close 
proximity to parks and schools were excluded, and five areas of allowed locations were specified 
in the ordinance:  Outer State Street, Upper De La Vina, Mission Street, West Pueblo Medical 
Facility, and Milpas Street.  The portion of North Milpas Street in proximity to Santa Barbara 
Junior High School was excluded.  The considerations about locational limitations included 
discussion about locating dispensaries in proximity to residential areas.  A limitation to stay some 
distance away from residential zones was rejected, in part to allow dispensaries on the narrow 
commercially zoned North Milpas Street corridor.  A buffer prohibiting dispensaries any 
significant distance from the adjoining residential zones would have deleted much of the Milpas 
area.  At this time, excluding the Milpas area from the ordinance would require an ordinance 
amendment to SBMC Chapter 28.80 approved by the City Council. 

B. Neighborhood Safety 
The appellant provided a report listing police calls for service at the vicinity of the subject 
property to demonstrate that this location has crime issues even without an operating dispensary.  
Attached to his appeal letter is a report of 911 calls dated January 25, 2008 to January 21, 2015.  
None of these calls were related to the current dispensary applicant or new property owner (since 
May 28, 2015). 

In deciding on issuance of a dispensary permit, consideration must be given to Criterion 2, that 
the proposed location is not identified by the City Chief of Police as an area of increased or high 
crime activity.  The City Police Department did confirm that 118 North Milpas Street is not an 
area of increased or high crime activity.  Staff considers the proposed operations and security 
plans to be responsive to safety concerns, and consistent with Criteria 7, 8, and 9 as described in 
the SHO staff report (Exhibit B), and the SHO approved the application. 

 

 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
118 N. Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
March 10, 2016 
Page 5 
 

C. Parking 
The appellant is concerned that, by not providing any on-site parking, this operation will have 
negative impacts to the availability of surrounding on-street parking for businesses and residents.  
Similar concerns were expressed by 12 of the 23 public commenters.  The parking requirement 
for a dispensary is stated in the dispensary ordinance to be the “commercial” parking requirement 
(SBMC §28.80.080.D.6).  The commercial parking requirement does not consider the popularity 
of a particular tenant or operation, it is determined by the square footage of the building, and the 
commercial use category in the City’s Parking Ordinance, SBMC §28.90.100.I.   

The requirement for commercial use is one parking space per 250 square feet of net floor area of 
the building.  Both the previous retail use, and the proposed dispensary use in this building fall 
under the commercial parking requirement, and both are conforming commercial uses in the C-
2 Commercial zone.  Since both are commercial uses, provision SBMC §28.90.001.N in the 
parking ordinance regarding change of use does not apply.  For this building, the conforming 
parking requirement would be nine spaces, however this property is legal, nonconforming with 
no onsite parking.  For properties which are nonconforming to the required parking, the parking 
ordinance provides that the nonconforming situation may continue, except that additional parking 
must be provided if the building square footage is increased, or the use of the building is changed 
to a use that requires more parking (SBMC §28.90.001.B).  Because the application does not 
involve new square footage or a change in use that requires more parking, no new parking is 
required.  The conforming parking requirement for bicycles would be one space, and the site plan 
includes bicycle racks for four bicycles. 

Parking is a zoning requirement; it is not a criterion for consideration in the issuance of a 
dispensary permit.  However, as a practical matter, staff requested that the applicant be able to 
explain how he envisions parking to work for his proposed operation.  The applicant provided a 
“parking plan” to staff to show how he will advise employee members and patient members of 
the availability of surrounding on-street parking, and of alternatives such as buses and bicycling. 
Because parking is not a criterion for issuance, this parking plan was not included in the proposed 
application.  The parking plan was discussed at the SHO hearing but was not made a part of the 
approved application. 

During the application review process, the applicant consulted with staff about closing the 
existing driveway in front of his property in order to provide more on-street parking.  Because of 
the expense, he did not include this work in his proposal but said he would consider doing it once 
the dispensary was operating.  The elimination of the curb cut and installation of new curb would 
result in the addition of one or two on-street public parking spaces, depending upon vehicle size 
and driver behavior.  The SHO made completion of this work with a Public Works permit a 
condition of approval.   

Criterion 8 refers to controlling patrons’ conduct with regard to traffic control problems, or 
interference of the operation of another business.  Criterion 9 refers to no adverse effect, not 
overly burdening a specific neighborhood, and not resulting in nuisance activities including 
illegal parking.  Staff does not consider these criteria applicable to this property’s nonconforming 
parking situation. 

D. Public Notification 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
118 N. Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
March 10, 2016 
Page 6 
 

Proper notification was done in accordance with the Brown Act, and with City requirements in 
SBMC 28.87.380 (Notice of Hearing), and consistent with Government Code Sections 65090 
and 65091.  The application had public hearings at the Architectural Board of Review Consent 
Agenda (ABR), and the SHO.  Ten days prior to both hearings, notices were mailed to owners of 
property within 300 feet, and a sign was posted at the site.  Five to six days prior to the ABR and 
SHO hearings, meeting agendas were posted at 630 Garden Street and on the City website.  
Twelve days prior to the SHO hearing, a legal ad appeared in the Santa Barbara News Press.   

Two notices were sent to Dal Bello properties prior to the ABR and SHO hearings.  Mr. Dal 
Bello was added to the mailing list as an interested party for the SHO hearing as a result of 
making public comment at the ABR hearing.  Mailed notification to neighboring tenants is not 
required or City policy, however, the standard large yellow Notice of Development sign was 
posted at the front of the site at least 10 days prior to ABR and SHO hearings.  Prior to the SHO 
hearing, the Staff Hearing Officer and planning staff read all written public comments received.  

VII. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
Staff has determined that the project qualifies for a categorical exemption from further 
environmental review under Section 15301(a) (Existing Facilities) of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines.  The project involves a tenant improvement in 
an existing commercial building. 

VIII. FINDINGS 
The Planning Commission finds the following:  

The application complies with the location criteria of SBMC §28.80.050, as outlined in Section 
V.A of the SHO staff report, and with the criteria for issuance of a Storefront Collective 
Dispensary permit set forth in SBMC §28.80.070.B, as explained in Section V.B of the SHO staff 
report and the applicant’s submittal. 

Exhibits: 

A. Appellant’s Letter, dated January 26, 2016  
B. SHO Staff Report, January 20, 2016 
C. SHO Resolution 006-16 
D. SHO Minutes, January 20, 2016, and Written Public Comment 
E. Application, Executive Summary, and Operating Plan 
F. Medical Cannabis Dispensaries Ordinance (SBMC Chapter 28.80) 



ATTACHMENT 4





































































































CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PLANNING COMMISSION 
RESOLUTION NO. 010-16 

118 N. MILPAS STREET 
STOREFRONT COLLECTIVE DISPENSARY PERMIT 

MARCH 17, 2016 

APPLICATION OF RYAN HOWE, 118 NORTH MILPAS STREET, 017-091-016, C-2 COMMERCIAL 
ZONE, GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION:  COMMERCIAL/MED HIGH RESIDENTIAL   (MST2015-
00319) 
On January 20, 2016, the Staff Hearing Officer approved an application for a Medical Marijuana Storefront 
Collective Dispensary at 118 North Milpas Street.  On January 28, 2016, Mr. Peter Dal Bello filed an appeal of 
the Staff Hearing Officer’s approval. A public hearing will be held for the Planning Commission to hear the 
appeal of the Staff Hearing Officer’s approval of the proposed Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensary.  The project includes operations and security plans, interior floor plan improvements, and minor 
exterior alterations and landscaping for the existing commercial building. 

The discretionary application required for this project is a Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit 
(SBMC §28.80.030).  

The Environmental Analyst has determined that the project is exempt from further environmental review pursuant 
to the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15301(a), Existing Facilities.   

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has held the required public hearing on the above appeal, and the 
Appellant was present. 

WHEREAS, 12 people appeared to speak in favor of the appeal, and no one appeared to speak in 
opposition thereto, and the following exhibits were presented for the record: 

1. Staff Report with Attachments, March 10, 2016

2. Site Plans

3. Correspondence received in support of the appeal:

a. Richard Garrett, via email

b. Anonymous, hand-delivered

c. Petition with 44 signatures, hand-delivered

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Planning Commission: 

I. Denied the appeal and upheld the Staff Hearing Officer’s decision of approval of the Dispensary making
the following findings and determinations:

The application complies with the location criteria of SBMC §28.80.050, as outlined in Section V.A of
the SHO staff report, and with the criteria for issuance of a Storefront Collective Dispensary permit set
forth in SBMC §28.80.070.B, as explained in Section V.B of the SHO staff report and the applicant’s
submittal.  The approval includes compliance with the Staff Hearing Officer’s conditions of approval as
listed below.

ATTACHMENT 5



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO.010 –16  
118 N. MILPAS STREET 
MARCH 17, 2016 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 
II. Said approval is subject to the following conditions: 

A. Approved Dispensary.  The applicant shall operate the dispensary in accordance with Chapter 
28.80 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code, and in accordance with the application information 
and plans approved by the Staff Hearing Officer on January 20, 2016.   

B. Order of Development.  In order to accomplish the proposed development, the following steps 
shall occur in the order identified:  

1. Permits. 

a. Submit an application for and obtain a Building Permit (BLD) for construction of 
approved development and complete said development.   

b. Submit an application for and obtain an alarm system permit.  Said alarm system 
shall be installed and registered per Municipal Code Chapter 9.100 and shall 
meet the requirements of the Santa Barbara Police Department. 

c. Submit an application for and obtain a Public Works Permit (PBW) for the 
construction Work and Temporary Traffic Control in the Public Right-of-Way. 

Details on implementation of these steps are provided throughout the conditions of approval. 

C. Requirements Prior to Permit Issuance.  The Owner shall submit the following, or evidence of 
completion of the following, for review and approval by the Department listed below prior to the 
issuance of any permit for the project.  Some of these conditions may be waived for demolition or 
rough grading permits, at the discretion of the department listed.  Please note that these conditions 
are in addition to the standard submittal requirements for each department. 

1. Community Development Department.   
a. Elimination of Curb Cut.  The existing curb cut and driveway apron shall be 

removed and replaced with curb, parkway, and sidewalk constructed to City 
Standards. 

b. Trash Enclosure and Trash Handling.  A trash enclosure with adequate area for 
recycling containers (an area that allows for a minimum of 50 percent of the total 
capacity for recycling containers) shall be provided on the Real Property and locked 
and screened from view from surrounding properties and the street. 

c. Operating Plan.  The Operating Plan shall be amended as follows: 

(1) A minimum of two (2) security guards shall be on duty during operating 
hours.  In the event of guards taking breaks or escorting staff off the 
premises, backup guard(s) shall be provided to maintain the two-guard 
minimum during operating hours.  

(2) After hours security camera monitoring shall have a 24 hour remote live 
feed to the offsite security monitoring firm. 

(3) Explain that upon joining the Collective, a registered member may obtain 
medical marijuana as a qualified patient or primary caregiver only after an 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO.010 –16  
118 N. MILPAS STREET 
MARCH 17, 2016 
PAGE 3 
 

initial waiting period of 24 hours after their initial in-person visit to the 
Dispensary for the purposes of joining the Collective 

(4) A complete list of available products (including edibles), merchandise, and 
services to be sold, offered, or provided at the Dispensary shall be provided 
to Community Development Department staff.   

(5) Clarify that marketing concepts such as concerts, “street walk”, and lectures 
will be conducted at offsite locations, not at the dispensary premises. 

(6) Clarify what rules of conduct “specifically including the points on the 
attachments” (page 21 of the Operation Plan) will be specified on a large 
sign displayed in the waiting room 

(7) Note that Canopy will post in a conspicuous location inside the dispensary 
a State Law Compliance Warning. 

(8) All qualified patients and primary caregivers shall enter the Storefront 
Collective Dispensary through the front doors outside of the secured fenced 
garden/wellness area.  The secured outside gate to this area shall be used for 
exit only. 

(9) On trash collection days, the Storefront Collective Dispensary Management 
shall remove the trash and recycling containers from the secured fenced area 
and place them in an area outside of the secured fenced area for servicing 
by the waste hauler.  The trash and recycling containers shall be returned to 
the trash/recycling enclosure within the secured fenced area by the 
Storefront Collective Dispensary Management prior to the close of the 
Dispensary that same day.  Waste hauler personnel shall not enter the 
controlled premises of the dispensary. 

(10) The Patient Agreement Form shall be amended as follows:  
i) Add acknowledgement by the patient or primary caregiver of the 

Canopy’s zero tolerance policy regarding loitering and using 
cannabis products or alcohol on or within 200 feet of the property 
including zero tolerance of use during any onsite class/lecture 
(educational, yoga, meditation, etc).  In the event of loitering or a 
cannabis use infraction, membership in this Collective shall be 
terminated. 

ii) Add acknowledgement and agreement by the patient or primary 
caregiver that they understand that they are limited to membership 
to only one collective within the City of Santa Barbara per 
28.80.080.G.5. 

d. Patient Agreement Form.  The Patient Agreement Form shall be amended as 
follows: 

(1) Add acknowledgement by the patient or primary caregiver of the Canopy’s 
zero tolerance policy regarding loitering and using cannabis products or 
alcohol on or within 200 feet of the property including zero tolerance of use 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO.010 –16  
118 N. MILPAS STREET 
MARCH 17, 2016 
PAGE 4 
 

during any onsite class/lecture (educational, yoga, meditation, etc).  In the 
event of loitering or a cannabis use infraction, membership in this Collective 
shall be terminated. 

(2) Add acknowledgement and agreement by the patient or primary caregiver 
that they understand that they are limited to membership to only one 
collective within the City of Santa Barbara per 28.80.080.G.5. 

e. Interior Signage.  The interior signage related to the rules of conduct, state law 
warning, prohibition of minors without parent/guardian, and hours of operation 
shall be reviewed and approved by the Community Development Department. 

f. Conditions on Plans/Signatures.  The final Resolution shall be provided on a full 
size drawing sheet as part of the drawing sets. A statement shall also be placed on 
the sheet as follows:  The undersigned have read and understand the required 
conditions, and agree to abide by any and all conditions which are their usual and 
customary responsibility to perform, and which are within their authority to 
perform. 

 Signed: 

 __________________________________________________________ 
 Property Owner       Date 

 __________________________________________________________ 
 Contractor    Date   License No. 

 __________________________________________________________ 
 Architect    Date   License No. 

 __________________________________________________________ 
 Engineer     Date   License No. 

D. Construction Implementation Requirements.  All of these construction requirements shall be 
carried out in the field by the Owner and/or Contractor for the duration of the project construction, 
including demolition and grading.  

1. Construction Contact Sign.  Immediately after Building permit issuance, signage shall be 
posted at the points of entry to the site that list the contractor(s) name, contractor(s) 
telephone number(s), and construction-related conditions, to assist Building Inspectors and 
Police Officers in the enforcement of the conditions of approval.  The font size shall be a 
minimum of 0.5 inches in height.  Said sign shall not exceed six feet in height from the 
ground if it is free-standing or placed on a fence.  It shall not exceed 24 square feet if in a 
multi-family or commercial zone or six square feet if in a single family zone. 

2. Construction Storage/Staging.  Construction vehicle/ equipment/ materials storage and 
staging shall be done on-site.  No parking or storage shall be permitted within the public 
right-of-way, unless specifically permitted by the Public Works Director with a Public 
Works permit.   

 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO.010 –16  
118 N. MILPAS STREET 
MARCH 17, 2016 
PAGE 5 
 

E. Prior to Certificate of Occupancy.  Prior to issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy, the Owner 
of the Real Property shall complete the following: 

1. Alarm System.  Register and install an alarm system per the requirements in SBMC 
Chapter 9.100.  

2. North Milpas Street Public Improvements.  The Owner shall submit an application and 
Public Works plans for construction of improvements along the property frontage on North 
Milpas Street.  Plans shall be submitted separately from plans submitted for a Building 
Permit and shall be prepared by a licensed civil engineer registered in the State of 
California.  As determined by the Public Works Department, the improvements shall 
include the elimination of the existing 10-ft driveway apron with the replacement of a new 
6-ft sidewalk, parkway and new curb and gutter per City standards. Tim Downey, Urban 
Forest Superintendent, Tel. (805) 564-5592, needs to be contacted in regards to the tree 
right next to the existing driveway apron in the Public Right-of-Way. 

3. Repair Damaged Public Improvements.  Repair any public improvements (curbs, 
gutters, sidewalks, roadways, etc.) or property damaged by construction subject to the 
review and approval of the Public Works Department per SBMC §22.60.   

F. General Conditions. 
1. Compliance with Requirements.  All requirements of the city of Santa Barbara and any 

other applicable requirements of any law or agency of the State and/or any government 
entity or District shall be met.  This includes, but is not limited to, the Endangered Species 
Act of 1973 [ESA] and any amendments thereto (16 U.S.C. § 1531 et seq.), the 1979 Air 
Quality Attainment Plan, and the California Code of Regulations. 

2. Approval Limitations.   
a. The conditions of this approval supersede all conflicting notations, specifications, 

dimensions, and the like which may be shown on submitted plans. 

b. All buildings, parking areas and other features shall be located substantially as 
shown on the plans approved by the Staff Hearing Officer. 

c. Any deviations from the project description, approved plans or conditions must be 
reviewed and approved by the City, in accordance with the Planning Commission 
Guidelines.  Deviations may require changes to the permit and/or further 
environmental review.  Deviations without the above-described approval will 
constitute a violation of permit approval.   

G. Litigation Indemnification Agreement.  In the event the Staff Hearing Officer’s approval of the 
permit is appealed to the City Council, Applicant/Owner hereby agrees to defend the City, its 
officers, employees, agents, consultants and independent contractors (“City’s Agents”) from any 
third party legal challenge to the City Council’s denial of the appeal and approval of the Project, 
including, but not limited to, challenges filed pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act (collectively “Claims”).  Applicant/Owner further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the 
City and the City’s Agents from any award of attorney fees or court costs made in connection with 
any Claim. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO.010 –16  
118 N. MILPAS STREET 
MARCH 17, 2016 
PAGE 6 
 

Applicant/Owner shall execute a written agreement, in a form approved by the City Attorney, 
evidencing the foregoing commitments of defense and indemnification within thirty (30) days of 
the City Council denial of the appeal and approval of the Project.  These commitments of defense 
and indemnification are material conditions of the approval of the Project.  If Applicant/Owner 
fails to execute the required defense and indemnification agreement within the time allotted, the 
Project approval shall become null and void absent subsequent acceptance of the agreement by the 
City, which acceptance shall be within the City’s sole and absolute discretion.  Nothing contained 
in this condition shall prevent the City or the City’s Agents from independently defending any 
Claim.  If the City or the City’s Agents decide to independently defend a Claim, the City and the 
City’s Agents shall bear their own attorney fees, expenses, and costs of that independent defense. 

H. Annual Review of Collective Dispensary Operations.  No later than one year after the issuance 
of the Certificate of Occupancy, or final building inspection signoff, and annually thereafter, the 
Storefront Collective Dispensary Management shall submit to the Community Development 
Department for an annual review of the operation for full compliance with the operational and 
recordkeeping requirements of Chapter 28.80, including but not limited to, compliance with 
Section 28.80.080.H, and verification that all persons employed or volunteering at the Storefront 
Collective Dispensary have not been convicted of or on probation for a crime related to the 
possession, sale, or distribution of controlled substances. A fee in an amount established by 
resolution of the City Council may be required in order to reimburse the City for the time involved 
in the annual review process. The staff may initiate a permit suspension or revocation process for 
any Storefront Collective Dispensary which, upon completion of an annual review, is found not to 
be in compliance with the requirements of this Chapter or which is operating in a manner which 
constitutes a public nuisance. 
 

I. Maintenance of Cultivation Records. The Storefront Collective Dispensary Management shall 
maintain on-site (i.e., at the Property designated for the operation of the Storefront Collective 
Dispensary) the medical marijuana cultivation records of the Collective. These records shall be 
signed under penalty of perjury by each Management Member responsible for the cultivation and 
shall identify the location or locations within the counties of Santa Barbara, Ventura, or San Luis 
Obispo at which the Collective’s medical marijuana is being cultivated. Such records shall also 
record the total number of marijuana plants cultivated or stored at each cultivation location. The 
Storefront Collective Dispensary shall also maintain an inventory record documenting the dates 
and amounts of medical marijuana cultivated or stored at the Dispensary Property, if any, as well 
as the daily amounts of Medical Marijuana distributed from the permitted Dispensary. 
 

II. NOTICE OF STOREFRONT COLLECTIVE DISPENSARY PERMIT APPROVAL TIME 
LIMITS: 
The Staff Hearing Officer action approving the Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit shall terminate 
two (2) years from the date of the approval, per Santa Barbara Municipal Code §28.87.360, unless: 

1. An extension is granted by the Community Development Director prior to the expiration of the 
approval; or 

2. A Building permit for the use authorized by the approval is issued and the construction authorized 
by the permit is being diligently pursued to completion and issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO.010 –16  
118 N. MILPAS STREET 
MARCH 17, 2016 
PAGE 7 
 
 
 

This motion was passed and adopted on the 17th day of March, 2016 by the Planning Commission of the 
City of Santa Barbara, by the following vote: 

  AYES: 7    NOES: 0    ABSTAIN: 0    ABSENT: 0 

 

I hereby certify that this Resolution correctly reflects the action taken by the city of Santa Barbara Planning 
Commission at its meeting of the above date. 

 
 
 
_______________________________________________  ____________________________ 
Julie Rodriguez, Planning Commission Secretary   Date 
 
PLEASE BE ADVISED: 
 
THIS ACTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION CAN BE APPEALED TO THE CITY COUNCIL 
WITHIN TEN (10) CALENDAR DAYS AFTER THE DATE THE ACTION WAS TAKEN BY THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION. 
 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

March 17, 2016 

CALL TO ORDER: 
Chair Campanella called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M. 

I. ROLL CALL
Chair John P. Campanella, Vice-Chair June Pujo, Commissioners Jay D. Higgins, Mike
Jordan, Sheila Lodge, Deborah L. Schwartz, and Addison Thompson.

STAFF PRESENT:
Beatriz Gularte, Senior Planner
Susan Reardon, Staff Hearing Officer
N. Scott Vincent, Assistant City Attorney
Daniel Gullett, Supervising Transportation Planner
Andrew Bermond, Project Planner
Barbara Shelton, Project Planner
Kathleen Kennedy, Associate Planner
Tony Boughman, Assistant Planner
Julie Rodriguez, Planning Commission Secretary

II. PRELIMINARY MATTERS:

A. Requests for continuances, withdrawals, postponements, or addition of ex-agenda
items.

None.

B. Announcements and appeals.

Ms. Gularte announced that Julie Rodriguez, Planning Commission Secretary was
recognized for ten years of service to the City.  The Commission expressed
appreciation with a standing ovation.

C. Comments from members of the public pertaining to items not on this agenda.

Chair Campanella opened the public hearing at 1:02 P.M. and, with no one wishing
to speak, closed the hearing.

ATTACHMENT 6



Planning Commission Minutes  
March 17, 2016 
Page 2 
 
III. STAFF HEARING OFFICER APPEALS: 

ACTUAL TIME: 1:03 P.M. 
 
APPLICATION OF RYAN HOWE, 118 NORTH MILPAS STREET, 017-091-016,  
C-2 COMMERCIAL ZONE, GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION: 
COMMERCIAL/MED HIGH RESIDENTIAL   (MST2015-00319) 
On January 20, 2016, the Staff Hearing Officer approved an application for a Medical 
Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary at 118 North Milpas Street.  On January 28, 2016, 
Mr. Peter Dal Bello filed an appeal of the Staff Hearing Officer’s approval. A public hearing 
will be held for the Planning Commission to hear the appeal of the Staff Hearing Officer’s 
approval of the proposed Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary.  The project 
includes operations and security plans, interior floor plan improvements, and minor exterior 
alterations and landscaping for the existing commercial building. 

The discretionary application required for this project is a Storefront Collective Dispensary 
Permit (SBMC §28.80.030).  

The Environmental Analyst has determined that the project is exempt from further 
environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines 
Section 15301(a), Existing Facilities.   

Contact: Tony Boughman, Assistant Planner 
Email: TBoughman@SantaBarbaraCA.gov Phone: (805) 564-5470, extension 4539 

 
Tony Boughman, Assistant Planner, gave the Staff presentation.  Susan Reardon, Staff 
Hearing Officer; and Dan Gullett, Supervising Transportation Planner, were available to 
answer the Commissioners questions. 
 
Pete Dal Bello gave the Appellant presentation.   
 
Ryan Howe, gave the Applicant presentation.  Joseph Allen, Attorney; and Bill Wolfe, 
Architect, were available to answer any of the Commission’s questions. 
 
Chair Campanella opened the public hearing at 1:55 P.M. 
 
The following people spoke in support of the appeal: 

1. Sebastian Aldana, Jr. (submitted petition with 44 signatures in support of the appeal):  
2. Natalia Govoni, Sheer Delights 
3. Joseph Newman 
4. Pamela Newman 
5. Britta Bartels 
6. Natasha Todorovic, Milpas Community Association 
7. Martha Jaimes 
8. Beatriz Molina, Milpas Community Association 
9. Rose Aldana, Milpas Community Association 

mailto:TBoughman@SantaBarbaraCA.gov


Planning Commission Minutes  
March 17, 2016 
Page 3 
 

10. Naomi Greene 
11. Jesus Perez 
12. Stanlee Panelle Cox 

 
With no one else wishing to speak, the public hearing was closed at 2:21 P.M. 
 
MOTION:  Thompson/Lodge Assigned Resolution No.  010-16 
Denied the appeal and upheld the Staff Hearing Officer’s decision of approval of the 
Dispensary with the Staff Hearing Officer’s conditions of approval. 
 
Commissioners Schwartz and Pujo asked the motion makers to consider revisions to the 
conditions of approval included in the motion.  The motion makers declined any revisions and 
kept the motion as made. 
This motion carried by the following roll-call vote:   
 
Ayes:  7    Noes:  0    Abstain:  0    Absent:  0 
 
Chair Campanella announced the ten calendar day appeal period.   
 
Chair Campanella called for a recess at 3:55 P.M. and reconvened the meeting at 4:07 P.M.   

IV. NEW ITEM:   

ACTUAL TIME: 4:07 P.M. 
 
APPLICATION OF SUZANNE ELLEDGE PLANNING AND PERMITTING  
SERVICES, AGENT FOR DIRECT RELIEF, 6100 HOLLISTER AVENUE (6100 
WALLACE BECKNELL ROAD), APN 073-080-065, A-I-1/ SP-6 (AIRPORT 
INDUSTRIAL/ AIRPORT INDUSTRIAL AREA SPECIFIC PLAN) ZONES, 
GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION: AIRPORT  (MST2014-00619) 
The project consists of a proposal to construct a new 155,000 square foot (net) facility for 
Direct Relief, a nonprofit organization.  The development includes a new 127,706 square foot 
(net) storage and distribution warehouse with an attached two-story 27,294 square foot (net) 
administrative office building, a secure truck yard loading area, and 162 parking spaces on a 
7.99 acre parcel to be purchased from the City of Santa Barbara Airport.  The existing eight 
buildings totaling 12,937 square feet would be demolished.  A new public road is proposed to 
be constructed immediately south of the project site, which is located in Sub-area 3 of the 
Santa Barbara Airport Industrial Area Specific Plan (SP-6).  The current address is 6100 
Hollister Avenue.  The new address would be 6100 Wallace Becknell Road.  

The discretionary applications required for this project are:   

1. A Finding of Consistency with the Santa Barbara Airport Industrial Area Specific Plan 
(SP-6);  



Planning Commission Minutes  
March 17, 2016 
Page 4 
 

2. Development Plan Approval for the entire project, including an allocation of 118,500 
square feet of nonresidential development from the Community Benefit, Small 
Addition, and Vacant Property Categories (SBMC Chapter 28.85); and 

3. Design Review Approval by the Architectural Board of Review (SBMC§22.68.020). 

An Addendum to the Santa Barbara Municipal Airport Industrial/Commercial 
Specific Plan Final Environmental Impact Report/ Assessment has been prepared for 
the proposed project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines 
Section 15164 (Addendum to an EIR).   

Contact: Kathleen Kennedy, Associate Planner 
Email: KKennedy@SantaBarbaraCA.gov Phone: (805) 564-5470, extension 4560 
 
Kathleen Kennedy, Associate Planner, gave the Staff presentation.  Andrew Bermond, Airport 
Project Planner; Barbara Shelton, Project Planner/Environmental Analyst; and Dan Gullett, 
Supervising Transportation Planner, were available to answer any of the Commission’s 
questions.   
 
Marti Milan, Principal Civil Engineer, City of Goleta, was also present. 
 
Suzanne Elledge, Suzanne Elledge Planning and Permitting Services, Inc., gave the Applicant 
presentation joined by Mark Linehan, Direct Relief Board Member; Courtney Jane Miller, 
Landscape Architect; Thomas Tighe, Direct Relief Chief Executive Officer; David Stone, 
Archaeologist, Dudek; and Scott Schell, Associated Transportation Engineers.  
 
Chair Campanella opened the public hearing at 4:22 P.M., and with no one wishing to speak 
the public hearing was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Jordan/Thompson  Assigned Resolution No.  011-16 
Approved the project, making the findings for environmental review, consistency with the 
Santa Barbara Airport Industrial Area Specific Plan (SP-6) and Development Plan as outlined 
in the Staff Report, dated March 10, 2016, subject to the Conditions of Approval in Exhibit A 
of the Staff Report with the following revisions to the Conditions of Approval:  
 
1. Add a new condition that prior to permit issuance the Applicant shall provide funds 

to the City to facilitate the construction of MTD shelters on the westbound and 
eastbound bus stop locations and include an agreeable time period for use of the funds.  

2. Clarify references to C-1 public improvement drawings with a definition in conditions 
of approval. 

 
This motion carried by the following vote:   
 
Ayes:  7    Noes:  0    Abstain:  0    Absent:  0 
 
Chair Campanella announced the ten calendar day appeal period.   

mailto:KKennedy@SantaBarbaraCA.gov


Planning Commission Minutes  
March 17, 2016 
Page 5 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA 

ACTUAL TIME: 5:09 P.M. 

A. Committee and Liaison Reports 

1. Staff Hearing Officer Liaison Report 

None was given.  

2. Other Committee and Liaison Reports 
 

a. Commissioner Higgins reported on the Downtown Parking 
Committee meeting held earlier in the morning. 

b. Commissioner Schwartz reported on the Water Commission meeting 
held earlier in the day. 

c. Commissioner Campanella reported on the Architectural Board of 
Review meeting held on March 14, 2016. 

d. Commissioner Campanella reported on the New Zoning Ordinance 
(NZO) Workshop and Special Planning Commission meeting to be 
held on Friday, March 18, 2016. 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Chair Campanella adjourned the meeting at 5:14 P.M. 
 

Submitted by, 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Julie Rodriguez, Planning Commission Secretary 



EXHIBIT B

ATTACHMENT 7























































































































































ATTACHMENT 8 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 8:  The reduced copies of the floor and security plans for 118 N. Milpas 

Street have been distributed separately.    

 

A copy of the plans are available for viewing at the City Clerk’s Office, 735 Anacapa 

Street, Santa Barbara, CA between the hours of 8:30 A.M and  

4:30 P.M.  Monday through Thursday, and every other Friday.  Please check the City 

Calendar at www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov to verify closure dates. 

 

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


28.80.050 Limitations on the Permitted Location of a Storefront Collective Dispensary. 

A. Permissible Zoning for Storefront Collective Dispensaries. Storefront Collective Dispensaries may only
be permitted and located on parcels within the City which are zoned for commercial uses and on those street
block faces listed in the exhibit to this Chapter designated as “Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective
Dispensaries – Allowed Locations,” dated as of June 22, 2010.
B. Storefront Locations. Except for those locations shown as allowed within the West Pueblo Medical Area
on the exhibit attached to this Chapter which have been specifically approved by the Staff Hearing Officer as
nonstorefront locations pursuant to this Chapter, a Storefront Collective Dispensary shall only be located in a
visible storefront type ground-floor location which provides good public views of the Dispensary entrance, its
windows, and the entrance to the Storefront Collective Dispensary premises from a public street.
C. Commercial Areas and Zones Where Storefront Collective Dispensaries Not Permitted.
Notwithstanding subparagraph (A) above, a Storefront Collective Dispensary shall not be allowed or permitted
on a parcel located within 1000 feet of another permitted or allowed Storefront Collective Dispensary.
D. Locational Measurements. The distance between a Storefront Collective Dispensary and above-listed
restrictions shall be calculated as a straight line from any parcel line of the Property on which the Storefront
Collective Dispensary is located to the parcel line the real property on which the facility, building, or structure,
or portion of the building or structure, in which the above-listed use occurs or is located.
For the purposes of determining compliance with the locational restrictions imposed by this section, the
permissibility of a proposed Storefront Collective Dispensary location shall be determined by City staff based
on the date the permit application has been deemed complete by the City, with the earliest complete
applications deemed to have priority over any subsequent Storefront Collective Dispensary application for any
particular permissible location.
E. One Collective Dispensary for Each Area of the City. No more than one Storefront Collective
Dispensary may open or operate in each of the areas of the City designated as allowed or permissible
Collective Dispensary location areas in the exhibit attached to this Chapter, except for those areas which, at the
time of the adoption of the ordinance amending this Chapter, already have more than one Storefront Collective
Dispensary on a legal nonconforming basis and which are allowed to continue to operate on a legal non-
conforming basis under Section Two of the Ordinance amending this Chapter--in which case a legal non-
conforming Dispensary may be allowed to continue to operate in such an area.
F. Maximum Number of Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensaries Allowed Permits.
Notwithstanding the above, the City may not issue a total of more than three (3) Collective Dispensary permits
at any one time and, subject to the amortization allowance period contained within the uncodified portions of
the City ordinance adopting amendments to this chapter, no more than three (3) permitted or allowed
Collective Dispensaries may legally operate within the City, including specifically those dispensaries which
are open and operating in a legal nonconforming manner at the time of the adoption of the ordinance amending
this Chapter. (Ord. 5526, 2010.)

ATTACHMENT 9



28.80.070 Criteria for Review of Collective Dispensary Applications by the City Staff Hearing Officer. 
 
A. Decision on Application. Upon an application for a Storefront Collective Dispensary permit being deemed 
complete, the Staff Hearing Officer shall either issue a Storefront Collective Dispensary permit, issue a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit with conditions in accordance with this Chapter, or deny a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary permit. 
B. Criteria for Issuance. The Staff Hearing Officer, or the City Council on appeal, shall consider the 
following criteria in determining whether to grant or deny a Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensary permit: 
1. That the Collective Dispensary permit and the operation of the proposed Dispensary will be consistent 
with the intent of the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 and the SB 420 Statutes for providing medical marijuana 
to qualified patients and primary caregivers, and with the provisions of this Chapter and the Municipal Code, 
including the application submittal and operating requirements herein. 
2. That the proposed location of the Storefront Collective Dispensary is not identified by the City Chief of 
Police as an area of increased or high crime activity. 
3. For those applicants who have operated other Storefront Collective Dispensaries within the City, that 
there have not been significant numbers of calls for police service, crimes or arrests in the area of the 
applicant’s former location. 
4. That issuance of a Collective Dispensary permit for the Collective Dispensary size requested is 
appropriate to meet needs of the community for access to medical marijuana. 
5. That issuance of the Collective Dispensary permit would serve needs of City residents within a 
proximity to this location. 
6. That the location is not prohibited by the provisions of this Chapter or any local or state law, statute, rule, 
or regulation, and no significant nuisance issues or problems are likely or anticipated, and that compliance with 
other applicable requirements of the City’s Zoning Ordinance will be accomplished. 
7. That the Dispensary’s Operations Plan, its site plan, its floor plan, the proposed hours of operation, and a 
security plan have incorporated features necessary to assist in reducing potential crime-related problems and as 
specified in the operating requirements section. These features may include, but are not limited to, security on-
site; procedure for allowing entry; openness to surveillance and control of the premises; the perimeter, and 
surrounding properties; reduction of opportunities for congregating and obstructing public ways and 
neighboring property; illumination of exterior areas; and limiting furnishings and features that encourage 
loitering and nuisance behavior. 
8. That all reasonable measures have been incorporated into the Dispensary security plan or consistently 
taken to successfully control the establishment’s patrons’ conduct resulting in disturbances, vandalism, crowd 
control inside or outside the premises, traffic control problems, marijuana use in public, or creation of a public 
or private nuisance, or interference of the operation of another business. 
9. That the Storefront Collective Dispensary is likely to have no potentially adverse affect on the health, 
peace, or safety of persons living or working in the surrounding area, overly burden a specific neighborhood, 
or contribute to a public nuisance, and that the Dispensary will generally not result in repeated nuisance 
activities including disturbances of the peace, illegal drug activity, marijuana use in public, harassment of 
passerby, excessive littering, excessive loitering, illegal parking, excessive loud noises, especially late at night 
or early in the morning hours, lewd conduct, or police detentions or arrests. 
10. That any provision of the Municipal Code or condition imposed by a City-issued permit, or any 
provision of any other local or state law, regulation, or order, or any condition imposed by permits issued in 
compliance with those laws, will not be violated. 
11. That the Applicant has not made a false statement of material fact or has omitted to state a material fact 
in the application for a permit. 
12. That the Applicant has not engaged in unlawful, fraudulent, unfair, or deceptive business acts or 
practices with respect to the operation of another business within the City. (Ord. 5526, 2010.) 



CORRESPONDENCE FROM THE APPELLANT 
  

















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































CORRESPONDENCE FROM THE PUBLIC 


































































































































































































































































































	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.DOCX
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.DOC
	8.DOC
	9.DOC
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.DOC
	13.DOC
	14.DOC
	15.DOC
	16.DOC
	17.DOC
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.PDF
	21.PDF
	22.PDF
	23.PDF
	24.PDF
	25.PDF
	26.PDF
	27.DOC
	28.PDF
	29.PDF
	30.PDF
	31.PDF
	32.PDF
	33.PDF
	34.PDF
	35.PDF
	36.PDF
	37.PDF
	38.PDF
	39.PDF
	40.PDF
	41.PDF
	42.PDF
	43.PDF
	Mayor
	MAY 10, 2016
	AGENDA
	ORDER OF BUSINESS



